
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
The S.E.A.R.C.H 2015

S.E.A.R.C.H. Flyer 6
Minutes

April 1, 2015 7
Payroll

Payroll 9
Warrants

Accounts Payable 12
Monthly Investment Report Ending March 31, 2015

Investment Report 22
Initiation of Proceedings for the Annual Levy of Assessments for
Landscape and Lighting District No. 1

Staff Report - LMD Initiation 25
Resolution Awarding Contract to Merzon Consulting to Facilitate
City Council Goal Setting Workshop

Staff Report - Merzon Consulting 28
Kerman Police Department 2014 Annual Report

KPD - 2014 Annual Report 33
Presentation of Pavement Management System

Staff Report - Pavement Management Systems 58
First Reading and Introduction of Ordinance No. 15-01
Amending Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code Related to
Emergency Shelters, Transitional and Supportive Housing for
the Homeless

Staff Report - Emergency Shelter Ordinance 70
Kerman Potable Water System Overview

Staff Report - Kerman Water System Overview 80

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, April 15, 2015 

6:30 PM  
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  
Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor  
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 
1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. The S.E.A.R.C.H 2015 (PG) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: S.E.A.R.C.H. Flyer 
 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 
A. SUBJECT: Minutes 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: April 1, 2015 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: March 15, 2015 - March 28, 2015: $124,721.74; Retro Pay: $30.88; 
Overtime: $2,514.01; Standby: $1,194.93; Comp Time Earned: 18.50 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants  
 
1. Nos. 6164-6237: $128,962.84 
2. Excepting - Sebastian #6231 - $3,111.31 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

Consent Cale ndar  
 
 
 

D. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending March 31, 2015 (TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as presented 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Investment Report 
 

E. SUBJECT: Initiation of Proceedings for the Annual Levy of Assessments for Landscape 
and Lighting District No. 1 (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution to initiate proceedings for the 
annual levy of assessments for Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 and authorize the 
City Engineer to file his annual report. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - LMD Initiation 

3



 
F. SUBJECT: Resolution Awarding Contract to Merzon Consulting to Facilitate City Council 

Goal Setting Workshop (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution awarding contract to Merzon 
Consulting in the amount not-to-exceed $1,000 to facilitate City Council goal setting 
workshop and authorize the City Manager to sign on behalf of the City of Kerman. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Merzon Consulting 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Kerman Police Department 2014 Annual Report (JB) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council receive the 2014 Annual Report presented by Chief of 
Police Joseph Blohm. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: KPD - 2014 Annual Report 
 

B. SUBJECT: Presentation of Pavement Management System (JJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council select the preferred alternative for pavement 
management and direct Staff to begin implementing the preferred alternative. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Pavement Management Systems 
 

C. SUBJECT: First Reading and Introduction of Ordinance No. 15-01 Amending Title 17 of 
the Kerman Municipal Code Related to Emergency Shelters, Transitional and Supportive 
Housing for the Homeless (LP) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council introduce, waive further reading, and set a public hearing 
for May 6, 2015 for adoption of an Ordinance No. 15-01 amending Chapter 17.90.020 
and adding Section 17.92 to Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code relating to 
emergency shelters, transitional and supportive housing for the homeless. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Emergency Shelter Ordinance 
 

D. SUBJECT: Kerman Potable Water System Overview (KM) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Ken Moore and Jerry Jones will present a PowerPoint 
presentation on the City's potable water system as an informational item. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Kerman Water System Overview  

4



 
5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 

 
6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 

 

A. Chamber of Commerce Installation Dinner - April 23, 2015, 5:30 p.m. at La Ramada 

B. Relay for Life, May 2 & 3, 9 a.m., Kerman High School Football Field 

C. Council Goal Setting Workshop - Tuesday, May 5, 8:30 a.m. – 2 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Government Code Section 54956.9 Liability Claim - Claimant: J.H. Boyd Enterprises Inc.; 
Agency Claimed Against: City of Kerman 

B. Government Code Section 54957 Public Employment - Title: City Attorney 

 
COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

5



	  

The Search 2015 

Location: KercKhoff Park 
Date: Saturday, April 18, 2015 

Registration starts @ 10AM 
Scavenger Hunt starts @ 10:45 AM 

After Party @KercKhoff from 12-4 PM 

Information	  or	  Questions	  Call:	  
Recreation	  Coordinator	  
Theresa	  Johnson	  at	  846-9383	  
	  

Scavenger Hunt open to 
all students 7-12th grade! 
(Maximum of 4 per team) 

Free Event!  
 
Free Breakfast  
& Lunch! 
 
Tons of Raffle 
Prizes!!  
 
DJ & Info Booths! 
 
$250 Scholarship 
For Winning Team! 
Don’t Miss Out!  
	  
	  
	  

6



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, April 1, 2015 

6:30 PM  
 

 

Stephen B. Hill – Mayor 
Gary Yep – Mayor Pro Tem 
Rhonda Armstrong – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

Present: Mayor Hill (SH) Rhonda Armstrong (RA) Gary Yep (GY), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN) 
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City Attorney 
Blum, Finance Director, Public Works Director 

Voting: Yes, 
No, Absent 
(Abstain if 
needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor   

• Call to Order 6:36 p.m.  

• Roll Call All present 
except NF 

• Invocation John Gidell 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 
6:37 p.m. NF 
Arrived 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS Approved  

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS None 

REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL  

2. CONSENT CALENDAR Approved 
RA/BN (5-0-0)  

A. SUBJECT: Minutes  

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented.  

B. SUBJECT: Payroll  

Payroll Report: March 1, 2015 - March 14, 2015: $124,235.67; Retro Pay: 
$82.13; Overtime: $5,760.97; Standby: $1,161.65; Comp Time Earned: 26.25 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented.  

C. SUBJECT: Warrants   

1. Nos. 6075-6163: $489,212.82  

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

 

D. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending February 28, 2015 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as 
presented 

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

7



 

 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. SUBJECT: Letter of Support for 2015 Sober Grad Night (MR)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council review request and direct staff according. Approved 
$500 RA/BN 
(5-0-0) 

B. SUBJECT: Annual Weed Abatement Action Intention to Initiate Weed 
Abatement Activities and Set Public Hearing (LP) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution declaring its 
intention to abate the nuisances created by weeds and debris and set May 6, 
2015, as the date for a hearing on objections to the abatement of nuisances. 

Approved 
RA/BN (5-0-0) 
 
Res 15-10 

C. SUBJECT: Multi-Jurisdictional Housing Element Update (LP) Presented 

RECOMMENDATION: Council to receive PowerPoint presentation on the 
status of the Multi-Jurisdictional Housing Element. 

 

D. SUBJECT: Proposed Utility Rate Changes for Fiscal Year 2015/2016 (TJ)  

RECOMMENDATION: Council receive proposed utility rate changes for Fiscal 
Year 2015/2016 and direct staff accordingly. 

Approved 
GY/BN (5-0-0) 
 
Res 15-11 

E. SUBJECT: Selection of Facilitator for the City Council Goal Setting Workshop 
(LP) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council select Merzon Consulting as the facilitator for 
the upcoming City Council goal setting workshop and authorize staff to 
execute a contract with Merzon Consulting in an amount not-to-exceed 
$1,000. 

Approved 
selecting 
Merzon 
Consulting 
GY/RA (5-0-0) 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

A. Status on Paperless Agenda (MR)  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

A. EDC 12th Annual Real Estate Forecast, April 9, 5:30 p.m., Fresno Conference 
Center 

 

B. Annual SSJVD Legislative Reception, Thursday, April 16, 5:30 p.m., Visalia 
Convention Center 

 

C. Chamber of Commerce Board Installation Dinner, Thursday, April 23, 5:30 
p.m., La Ramada 

 

7. CLOSED SESSION 8:15 p.m. 

A. Government Code Section 54957 - Public Employment - Title: City Attorney No reportable 
action. 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 8:44 p.m. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 8:45 p.m. 
NF/BN (5-0-0) 

 

8



9



10



11



Accounts Payable

User:

Printed: 

dgonzalez

4/10/2015  9:48 AM

Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date

Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10010 ACCOUNTEMPS 03/31/20156164
42644046 TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 40 HRS  33.05

42644046 TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 40 HRS  231.37

42644046 TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 40 HRS  198.33

42644046 TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 40 HRS  165.25

42644046 TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 40 HRS  33.05

42644047 TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 40 HRS  1,200.00

 1,861.05Total for Check Number 6164:

10766 JOSEPH BLOHM 03/31/20156165
03302015 PD-REIMBURSE CHIEF FOR ROLL METERS  48.65

 48.65Total for Check Number 6165:

10062 BSN SPORTS 03/31/20156166
96631465 CS-REPLACE BBALL NET KIWANIS PARK  48.28

 48.28Total for Check Number 6166:

10183 GRAFIX SHOPPE 03/31/20156167
99532 V/E-GRAPHIC KIT FOR VEHICLE #1471  180.21

 180.21Total for Check Number 6167:

10199 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 03/31/20156168
03302015 CS-LI-ION BATTERY  106.92

03302015 CS-LI-ION BATTERY -106.92

03302015 CS-LI-ION BATTERY  107.94

 107.94Total for Check Number 6168:

10514 ICAD INC. 03/31/20156169
11624 WTR-HMI PROGRAMMING/FIRMWARE  187.50

11625 WTR-HMI PROGRAMMING/FIRMWARE  125.00

 312.50Total for Check Number 6169:

10767 IDESIGN CUSTOM SCREEN PRINTING 03/31/20156170
03302015 REC-YOUTH COMMISSION T-SHIRTS  151.50

03302015 REC-EARTH DAY T-SHIRTS  978.00

 1,129.50Total for Check Number 6170:

10205 INDEPENDENT STATIONERS 03/31/20156171
IN-000510881 ADM-OFFICE SUPPLIES  74.92

IN-000510881 ADM-OFFICE SUPPLIES -6.42

IN-000510881 ADM-OFFICE SUPPLIES -4.59

 63.91Total for Check Number 6171:

Page 1AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (4/10/2015  9:48 AM)

12

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10766
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10062
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10183
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10199
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10514
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10767
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10205


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10233 KERMAN CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 03/31/20156172
03302015 CS-GIFT CERTIFICATES SR PROM  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 6172:

10282 OFFICE DEPOT 03/31/20156173
759256307001 CS-COLORED PAPER FOR FLYERS  41.54

759256307001 CS-COPIER PAPER  110.38

759536452001 CS-BUSINESS CARD PAPER  38.95

759537234001 CS-TRANSPARENCIES/WHITEOUT  18.40

 209.27Total for Check Number 6173:

10604 S & S WORLDWIDE, INC. 03/31/20156174
8505618 REC-START SMART BASEBALL EQUIPMENT  95.58

 95.58Total for Check Number 6174:

10603 SOLENIS LLC 03/31/20156175
130946342 SWR-POLYMER FOR SCREW PRESS  3,783.16

 3,783.16Total for Check Number 6175:

10441 TURF STAR INC. 03/31/20156176
6887383-00 V/E-BLADES FOR MOWERS  254.77

6887682-00 V/E-TRANSMISSION FOR MOWER  405.85

 660.62Total for Check Number 6176:

10389 VALLEY AIR CONDITIONING 03/31/20156177
30257 CS-QTLY PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE-CITY HALL  575.00

30258 CS-QTLY PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE-POLICE DEPARTMENT  375.00

30259 CS-QTLY PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE-COMM TEEN CENTER  580.00

30260 CS-QTLY PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE-SENIOR CENTER  312.50

 1,842.50Total for Check Number 6177:

10406 WEST HILLS OIL, INC 03/31/20156178
46852 V/E-FUEL MARCH 01-15  3,709.47

 3,709.47Total for Check Number 6178:

10762 WM LYLES CO 03/31/20156179
F8422-FINAL SWR-REPL WEAR BARS & SCREEN BRUSHES  5,350.00

 5,350.00Total for Check Number 6179:

10763 Z - CARMEN CEJA 03/31/20156180
CUP15-02 BPO-REFUND PLANNING C.U.P. 15-02 VOIDED  272.50

CUP15-02 BPO-REFUND PLANNING C.U.P. 15-02 VOIDED  247.00

 519.50Total for Check Number 6180:

10765 Z - ELYSE MEDINA 03/31/20156181
00017036 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND SCOUT HUT  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 6181:

10764 Z - MONICA PEREZ 03/31/20156182
00015215 CTC-DEPOSIT REFUND SCOUT HUT 3/22  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 6182:

Page 2AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (4/10/2015  9:48 AM)

13

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10233
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10282
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10604
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10603
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10441
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10389
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10406
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10762
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10763
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10765
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10764


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 20,222.14Total for 3/31/2015:

10147 Employment Development Department 04/01/2015ACH
04032015 C PR TAX DEPOSIT - 4/3/15 SIT PAYABLE = PIT AMOUNT  3,556.05

04032015 C PR TAX DEPOSIT - 4/3/15 SDI PAYABLE = SDI AMOUNT  1,073.94

 4,629.99Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10147:

10517 Federal Taxes-Payroll 04/01/2015ACH
04032015 C PAYROLL TAX DEPOSIT - 4/3/2015 FIT PAYABLE = TAX WITHHOLDING  13,440.27

04032015 C PAYROLL TAX DEPOSIT - 4/3/2015 FICA PAYABLE = SOCIAL SECURITY  15,633.90

04032015 C PAYROLL TAX DEPOSIT - 4/3/2015 FICA MED PAYABLE = MEDICARE  3,656.32

 32,730.49Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10517:

10518 Kerman Police Officers Assn. 04/01/2015ACH
04032015 C MEMBERSHIP DUES - 4/3/15  588.12

 588.12Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10518:

10519 Kerman Municipal Employees Assn. 04/01/2015ACH
04032015 C MEMBERSHIP DUES - 4/3/15  180.00

 180.00Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10519:

10520 ICMA-RC 04/01/2015ACH
04032015 C DEFERRED COMP - 4/3/15  2,530.00

 2,530.00Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10520:

10522 CalPERS 04/01/2015ACH
04032015 C EMPLOYER PAID CONTRIBUTIONS  12,623.68

04032015 EMPLOYEE PAID CONTRIBUTIONS  8,268.07

04032015 ROUNDING ADJ -0.10

04032015 ROUNDING ADJ  0.10

 20,891.75Total for this ACH Check for Vendor 10522:

 61,550.35Total for 4/1/2015:

UB*00076 ARC FRESNO 04/02/20156183
Refund Check  17.42

Refund Check  4.62

Refund Check  13.45

Refund Check  34.79

 70.28Total for Check Number 6183:

UB*00077 ROCHELLE BUJWID 04/02/20156184
Refund Check  149.07

Refund Check  2.57

Refund Check  7.47

Refund Check  5.29

Refund Check  0.50

Refund Check  0.30

 165.20Total for Check Number 6184:

UB*00075 ISABEL LONG 04/02/20156185

Page 3AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (4/10/2015  9:48 AM)

14

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10147
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10517
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10518
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10519
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10520
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10522
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00076
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00077
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00075


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

Refund Check  61.46

Refund Check  0.77

Refund Check  2.24

Refund Check  1.59

Refund Check  0.15

Refund Check  0.09

 66.30Total for Check Number 6185:

UB*00078 DANIEL MEDINA 04/02/20156186
Refund Check  6.50

Refund Check  3.59

Refund Check  10.46

Refund Check  6.61

 27.16Total for Check Number 6186:

UB*00074 RUDY MOLINA 04/02/20156187
Refund Check  11.60

Refund Check  6.42

Refund Check  18.67

Refund Check  13.22

Refund Check  1.25

Refund Check  0.11

 51.27Total for Check Number 6187:

UB*00083 LEONARDO RODRIGUEZ 04/02/20156188
Refund Check  13.92

Refund Check  7.70

Refund Check  22.41

Refund Check  15.86

Refund Check  1.50

Refund Check  0.90

 62.29Total for Check Number 6188:

UB*00084 LETICIA RODRIGUEZ 04/02/20156189
Refund Check  147.93

 147.93Total for Check Number 6189:

UB*00082 STEVE ROSITAS 04/02/20156190
Refund Check  26.49

 26.49Total for Check Number 6190:

UB*00073 STEVE T & IRENE M SANCHEZ 04/02/20156191
Refund Check  150.00

 150.00Total for Check Number 6191:

UB*00079 ERIN SCROGGINS 04/02/20156192
Refund Check  133.85

Refund Check  0.56

Refund Check  8.03

Refund Check  7.40

Refund Check  0.70

Refund Check  0.22

 150.76Total for Check Number 6192:

Page 4AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (4/10/2015  9:48 AM)

15

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00078
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00074
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00083
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00084
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00082
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00073
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00079


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

UB*00080 DELIA TAPIA 04/02/20156193
Refund Check  53.62

 53.62Total for Check Number 6193:

UB*00081 ARMANDO VILLASENOR 04/02/20156194
Refund Check  64.13

 64.13Total for Check Number 6194:

 1,035.43Total for 4/2/2015:

10010 ACCOUNTEMPS 04/08/20156195
42644046 FIN-TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 39.5 HRS  33.90

42644046 FIN-TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 39.5 HRS  237.38

42644046 FIN-TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 39.5 HRS  203.48

42644046 FIN-TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 39.5 HRS  169.56

42644046 FIN-TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 39.5 HRS  33.90

42697157 FIN-TEMP AGENCY PERSONNEL - 40 HRS  1,200.00

 1,878.22Total for Check Number 6195:

10014 ADMINISTRATIVE SOLUTIONS, INC 04/08/20156196
3302015 HR-FSA PLAN DOCUMENT RESTATEMENT FEE  300.00

 300.00Total for Check Number 6196:

10030 AMERICAN CANCER SOCIETY 04/08/20156197
04012015 CC-2015 RELAY FOR LIFE DONATION  500.00

 500.00Total for Check Number 6197:

10040 AT&T MOBILITY 04/08/20156198
04022015 PD-MAR MDT WIRELESS SERVICE 02/20/15 TO 03/19/15  273.82

 273.82Total for Check Number 6198:

10062 BSN SPORTS 04/08/20156199
96797805 CS-REPLACE HOME PLATE - COLEMAN FIELD  88.73

 88.73Total for Check Number 6199:

10067 CALIFORNIA BUILDING STANDARDS 04/08/20156200
03312015 FIN-BLDG STANDARDS ADMN FEE 1ST QTR 2015  125.10

 125.10Total for Check Number 6200:

10108 COOKS COMMUNICATIONS 04/08/20156201
123413 V/E-2 KENWOOD MICS FOR #1471 & STOCK  214.29

 214.29Total for Check Number 6201:

10126 DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION 04/08/20156202
03312015 FIN-STRONG MOTION 3RD QTR FY 14/15  651.32

 651.32Total for Check Number 6202:

10128 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 04/08/20156203
092028 PD-MAR LIVE SCAN PRINTS  241.00

Page 5AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (4/10/2015  9:48 AM)

16

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00080
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00081
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10014
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10030
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10062
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10067
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10108
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10126
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10128


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

 241.00Total for Check Number 6203:

10748 DFS FLOORING 04/08/20156204
600555-1 CTC-STAIR TREADS CTC  1,104.00

 1,104.00Total for Check Number 6204:

10136 DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITCT 04/08/20156205
03312015 FIN-REMIT STATE FEE ON BUS LIC  30.90

 30.90Total for Check Number 6205:

10144 ELBERT DISTRIBUTING, INC 04/08/20156206
3009171 V/E-COOLANT FOR STOCK  69.29

 69.29Total for Check Number 6206:

10612 EQUIPARTS 04/08/20156207
5919 CS-FOUNTAIN REPAIR KIT - KERCKHOFF  203.24

6553 CS-BUBBLER HEAD - LIONS PARK  298.68

 501.92Total for Check Number 6207:

10151 EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 04/08/20156208
9391483 STRTC-VALVES, KITS AND SUPPLIES  245.79

9420266 STRTC-VARIOUS NOZZLES AND VALVES  441.47

 687.26Total for Check Number 6208:

10160 FRESNO COUNTY CLERK 04/08/20156209
3/16/2015 CLRK-NOV 2014 GENERAL ELECTION  2,694.52

 2,694.52Total for Check Number 6209:

10162 FRESNO COUNTY TREASURER 04/08/20156210
SO12462 PD-DISPATCHING SERVICE APR 2015  17,780.36

SO12463 PD-MAR 2015 RMS/JMS/CAD ACCESS FEES  167.29

 17,947.65Total for Check Number 6210:

10169 FRESNO PET CEMETERY 04/08/20156211
22593 AAC-13 ANIMAL CARCASSES DISPOSED OF  281.20

 281.20Total for Check Number 6211:

10440 GLASS CENTERS 04/08/20156212
5692 V/E-INSTALL WINDSHIELD #1466  228.63

 228.63Total for Check Number 6212:

10191 H & J CHEVROLET INC 04/08/20156213
CVW19013 V/W-FRONT BRAKE PAD KIT FOR #1446  128.79

CVW19041 V/W-FRONT BRAKE ABSORBER KIT #1446  178.40

CVW19204 V/W-TAILGATE HANDLE #1394  92.63

 399.82Total for Check Number 6213:

10194 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS, LTD 04/08/20156214
D704486 WTR-TUBING INSERTS  171.00

 171.00Total for Check Number 6214:

Page 6AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (4/10/2015  9:48 AM)

17

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10748
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10136
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10144
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10612
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10151
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10160
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10162
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10169
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10440
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10191
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10194


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10198 HENRY, LOGOLUSO, & BLUM 04/08/20156215
22562 CC-MONTHLY MEETINGS AB25  500.00

22562 CC-PACIFIC MOUNTAIN PARTNERS  510.00

22562 CC-GENERAL - ONG  732.00

22562 CC-PLANNING COMM - ONG  108.00

22562 CC-POLICE - ONG  1,162.20

22562 CC-WALMART  108.00

 3,120.20Total for Check Number 6215:

10769 HOTLINE CONSTRUCTION INC 04/08/20156216
04062015 WTR-WATER METER RENTAL REFUND  950.00

 950.00Total for Check Number 6216:

10203 HUB INTERNATIONAL OF CA 04/08/20156217
00017028 CTC-EVENT INSUR-KERMAN BAPTIST CHURCH  207.50

 207.50Total for Check Number 6217:

10218 JEANNA BURDINE-SLAVEN 04/08/20156218
04072015 CS-REIMBURSEMENT SR PROM SUPPLIES  59.46

 59.46Total for Check Number 6218:

10229 JUDICIAL DATA SYSTEMS CRP 04/08/20156219
5205 PD-PARKING ACTIVITY FOR FEB  100.00

 100.00Total for Check Number 6219:

10768 KERMAN HISTORICAL SOCIETY 04/08/20156220
4/1/2015 CC-HISTORICAL SOCIETY DONATION  500.00

 500.00Total for Check Number 6220:

10239 KERWEST NEWSPAPERS 04/08/20156221
17327 CLRK-SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL  30.00

37648 WTR/SWR-SR ACCOUNTANT AD  46.00

37648 WTR/SWR-SR ACCOUNTANT AD  46.00

37670 STRTC-HELP WANTED AD-MAINT. WORKER  130.00

 252.00Total for Check Number 6221:

10240 KHS SOBER GRAD 04/08/20156222
04062015 CC-2015 SOBER GRAD DONATION  500.00

 500.00Total for Check Number 6222:

10249 LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES 04/08/20156223
55919 VAR-WTR/SEWER - SR ACCOUNTANT AD  250.00

 250.00Total for Check Number 6223:

10253 MAACO COLLISION REPAIR 04/08/20156224
REPAIR #48264 V/E-PAINT FOR VEHICLE #1466  905.00

 905.00Total for Check Number 6224:

10771 MIRACLE RECREATION EQUIPMENT CO04/08/20156225
760557 CS-REPAIR PARTS-KIWANIS PARK  923.03

 923.03Total for Check Number 6225:

Page 7AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (4/10/2015  9:48 AM)

18

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10198
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10769
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10203
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10218
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10229
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10768
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10239
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10240
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10249
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10253
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10771


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

10487 LORA NEHRING 04/08/20156226
04072015 REC-INSTRUCTOR FEE ZUMBA 3/15  238.00

 238.00Total for Check Number 6226:

10282 OFFICE DEPOT 04/08/20156227
761476891001 CS-PRINTER INK  104.52

761736896001 SWR-WTR-ENVELOPES  26.04

 130.56Total for Check Number 6227:

10457 OFFICEMAX INC. 04/08/20156228
976829 WTR-CASE OF PAPER FOR CCR  35.39

976829 V/E-RED & BLUE INK PENS  34.29

976829 WTR/SWR-BUSINESS CARD STOCK  17.61

976829 WTR/SWR-BUSINESS CARD STOCK  17.61

 104.90Total for Check Number 6228:

10289 P.G.& E. 04/08/20156229
2881141119-9 CS-MARCH TRANSIT BUS FUEL  189.24

4647279811-8 PD-MARCH 2014 3/4/15-4/1/15  878.58

 1,067.82Total for Check Number 6229:

10314 QUILL CORPORATION 04/08/20156230
2572099 WTR/SWR-COPY PAPER & PENS  54.22

2572099 WTR/SWR-COPY PAPER & PENS  54.21

 108.43Total for Check Number 6230:

10332 SEBASTIAN 04/08/20156231
10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  559.28

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  17.21

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  25.81

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  215.11

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  2.15

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  7.74

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  197.90

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  301.15

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  64.53

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  81.74

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  215.11

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  322.66

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  49.47

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  215.11

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  104.00

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  73.14

10307883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  141.06

10311490 PD-MARCH T-LINE  416.70

10311882 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  50.72

10311883 VAR-MONTHLY PHONE SERVICE  50.72

 3,111.31Total for Check Number 6231:

10337 SLUMBERGER LUMBER 04/08/20156232
04062015 STRTC-SUPPLIES <$50 2 INV #3115  28.23

04062015 BPO-SUPPLIES <$50 6 INV #3115  126.44

04062015 V/E-SUPPLIES <$50 3 INV #3115  46.75

04062015 BPO-CREDIT FROM LAST STATEMENT #3115 -0.03

B243831 BLDG-SUUPPLIES <$50 #3115  10.70

Page 8AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (4/10/2015  9:48 AM)

19

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10487
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10282
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10457
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10289
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10314
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10332
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10337


Check No Check DateVendor NameVendor No Check Amount

Invoice No ReferenceDescription

C147323 WTR-HAMMER, WRENCH, SCREWDRIVERS #3305  30.98

C147323 SWR-HAMMER, WRENCH, SCREWDRIVERS #3305  30.97

C148848 WTR-SUPPLIES <$50 #3305  16.22

C149356 WTR-SUPPLIES <$50 #3305  4.59

C149356 SWR-SUPPLIES <$50 #3305  4.59

C149597 LLD-LITHIUM 9V BATTERIES #3115  64.87

C150501 BPO-MOP, 9V BATTERIES, IRRIG TIMERS #3115  131.91

 496.22Total for Check Number 6232:

10770 THE FRESNO BEE 04/08/20156233
411117 VAR-WTR/SEWER - SR ACCOUNTANT AD  227.32

411117 VAR-WTR/SEWER - SR ACCOUNTANT AD  227.32

 454.64Total for Check Number 6233:

10441 TURF STAR INC. 04/08/20156234
688837-00 V/E-BELT PULLEY, KEY-42" TORO MOWER  61.67

 61.67Total for Check Number 6234:

10386 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT 04/08/20156235
04012015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  64.87

04012015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  291.75

04012015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  200.00

04012015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  6.45

04012015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  6.44

04012015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  142.86

04012015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  504.87

04012015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  811.29

04012015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  208.64

04012015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES -13.80

04012015 VAR-CREDIT CARD CHARGES  399.00

 2,622.37Total for Check Number 6235:

10412 XEROX CORPORATION 04/08/20156236
78955107 ADM-COPIER LEASE, 22292 PRINT CHARGES, TAX  444.43

78955108 PD-MAR COPIER SERVICE 2/25/15-3/25/15  476.05

78955110 CS-REC DEPT COPIER MARCH  282.66

 1,203.14Total for Check Number 6236:

10772 Z - GLORIA DIAZ 04/08/20156237
00006457 CTC-REFUND CANCELLATION 11/28/15  400.00

 400.00Total for Check Number 6237:

 46,154.92Total for 4/8/2015:

Report Total (80 checks):  128,962.84

Page 9AP Checks by Date - Detail by Check Date (4/10/2015  9:48 AM)

20

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10770
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10441
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10386
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10412
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=10772


US BANK
Date Vendor Description Internal Acct Code Amount

Joseph Blohm
03/06/15 WALMART DOG FOOD 100.3041.521.02.00 64.87$        
03/05/15

64.87$        Blohm

Terri Cubillos
01/24/15 AMAZAON UNIDEN RADIOS 100.3999.600.03.02 291.75$      

3/6/2015 RECERT TASER-SGT NELSON 100.3011.554.01.00 200.00$      
STERLING CLEANERS DUPLICATE PAYMENT 100.3011.521.02.00 (13.80)$      

477.95$      Cubillos

Toni Jones
03/02/15 WALMART HAND SANITIZER 410.5005.521.01.00 6.45$          
03/02/15 WALMART HAND SANITIZER 420.5005.521.01.00 6.44$          

AMAZON OFFICE SUPPLIES 100.1002.521.01.00 142.86$      

155.75$      Jones
Ken Moore

03/19/15 ENVIROCLEAN VARIOUS CLEANING SUPPLIES 500.4050.521.03.00 504.87$      

504.87$      Moore

Phillip Gallegos
02/26/15 4 ALL PROMO'S RECYCLE BAGS 100.2065.521.02.00 338.35$      
03/11/15 CROWN AWARDS/ORIENTAL TRADING-VARIOUS PRIZES/AWARDS 100.2065.521.02.00 472.94$      

811.29$      Gallegos
Marci Reyes

03/11/15 PAYPAL TABLET/CASE 100.6001.521.02.00 208.64$      
03/18/15 LOGMEIN SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL 500.5051.510.01.00 399.00$      

607.64$      Reyes

TOTAL 2,622.37$   

21



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of March 31, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:
Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/14 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,000.00               690.52            

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/11/11 8/11/14 52,000.00               (52,000.00)      -                   -                         309.44            

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 8/10/11 8/11/14 46,000.00               (46,000.00)      -                   -                         263.78            

World Financial Network NB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/31/11 8/29/14 200,000.00             (200,000.00)    -                   -                         -                  

Ally Bank  615-030525-245 1.75% 10/8/10 10/8/14 100,000.00             (100,000.00)    -                   -                         877.40            

CIT Bank, Salt Lake City, UT 615-030525-245 1.50% 5/4/11 11/4/14 99,000.00               (99,000.00)      -                   -                         748.60            

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 11/5/10 11/5/14 97,000.00               (97,000.00)      -                   -                         831.28            

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 1/21/11 1/21/15 100,000.00             (100,000.00)    -                   -                         1,700.00          

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 3/24/11 3/24/15 98,000.00               (98,000.00)      -                   -                         1,960.00          

Ally Bank, Midvale 615-030525-245 1.80% 6/8/11 6/8/15 147,000.00             147,000.00       147,452.76             1,326.62          

EverBank 615-030525-245 0.70% 12/14/12 6/15/15 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,149.94               343.94            

Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00             150,000.00       150,777.00             3,000.00          

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00               50,000.00        50,197.00               750.00            

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00               97,000.00        97,298.76               1,067.00          

Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,135.00             700.00            

Discover Bank 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,693.00               1,534.50          

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,891.00             2,250.00          

Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00               95,000.00        95,177.65               479.59            

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00               51,000.00        51,550.80               688.50            

Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00               48,000.00        48,339.84               672.00            

Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,088.00             500.00            

Doral Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 6/12/13 6/13/16 149,000.00             (149,000.00)    -                   -                         724.73            

Doral Bank San Juan PR 615-030525-245 1.20% 6/28/12 6/28/16 99,000.00               (99,000.00)      -                   -                         818.52            

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00               47,000.00        47,861.98               940.00            

Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,644.00             1,000.00          

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00             200,000.00       203,248.00             3,700.00          

Ally Bank 615-030525-245 0.95% 10/2/14 10/11/16 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,351.00             49.52              

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.00% 11/12/14 11/14/16 96,000.00        96,000.00        96,223.68               -                  

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 6-15-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00               53,000.00        53,339.73               436.08            

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00             196,000.00       196,927.08             1,319.39          

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,490.00               882.00            

Ge Capital Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 5/8/14 5/16/17 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,446.40             -                  

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        99,309.28               3,041.21          

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00             150,000.00       152,326.50             3,033.95          

1st Merchants 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00               96,000.00        96,375.36               476.05            

Third Federal 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,592.02               2,701.24          

Capital One Bank Glen Allen VA 615-030525-245 1.25% 1/22/15 1/22/18 100,000.00      100,000.00       100,651.00             -                  

Bank of Baroda 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       248,798.56             1,537.26          

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       249,341.68             1,854.91          

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        97,967.66               -                  

Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00               97,000.00        98,591.77               2,217.13          

American Express Bank, FSB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/14/14 8/14/18 98,000.00        98,000.00        98,353.78               790.44            

Third Federal Cleveland OH 615-030525-245 1.55% 3/26/15 3/26/19 98,000.00        98,000.00        98,435.12               -                  

Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00             248,000.00       250,750.32             2,362.45          

BMW Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 6/20/14 6/20/19 200,000.00             200,000.00       201,714.00             1,955.34          

Cit Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 2.15% 11/13/14 11/13/19 100,000.00      100,000.00       101,018.00             -                  
22



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of March 31, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

Synchrony Draper UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 3/13/15 3/13/20 150,000.00      150,000.00       149,694.00             -                  

JP Morgan Chase Bank 615-030525-245 2.10% 3/31/15 3/31/20 98,000.00        98,000.00        98,166.60               -                  

Average Rate 1.25%
Subtotal - CD's 4,798,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,598,000.00    4,625,368.27          50,533.39        

Government Securities:

Subtotal - Government Securities -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

Central Valley Comm Bank CD
200,000.00             200,000.00       200,000.00             2,011.83          

Total CD and Government Securities Investments 4,998,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,798,000.00    4,825,368.27          52,545.22        

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                          -                   

(City of Kerman) 150,825.51             150,825.51       150,825.51             -                  
Interest -                   

-                   -                  
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 150,825.51             -                  -                       150,825.51       150,825.51             -                  

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 2,901,993.40          2,901,993.40    
Interest 7/31/14 286.72            286.72             286.72            

8/31/14 282.39            282.39             282.39            
9/30/14 231.47            231.47             231.47            

10/31/14 236.58            236.58             236.58            
11/30/14 215.31            215.31             215.31            
12/31/14 213.78            213.78             213.78            
1/31/15 255.68            255.68             255.68            
2/28/15 270.06            270.06             270.06            
3/31/15 296.31            296.31             296.31            

-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) 7/10/14 (125,000.00)    (125,000.00)     
8/28/14 (50,000.00)      (50,000.00)       
9/12/14 (500,000.00)    (500,000.00)     
9/19/14 (160,000.00)    (160,000.00)     
10/2/14 350,000.00      350,000.00       

10/16/14 (165,000.00)    (165,000.00)     
11/19/14 (175,000.00)    (175,000.00)     
12/29/15 200,000.00      200,000.00       

1/2/15 400,000.00      400,000.00       
1/7/15 (150,000.00)    (150,000.00)     
1/9/15 (20,000.00)      (20,000.00)       

1/22/15 (175,000.00)    (175,000.00)     
1/29/15 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
1/30/15 700,000.00      700,000.00       
3/20/15 (100,000.00)    (100,000.00)     
3/25/15 (75,000.00)      (75,000.00)       
3/26/15 150,000.00      150,000.00       

2,901,993.40          7,288.30          -                       2,909,281.70    2,909,281.70          2,288.30          

Subtotal All City Investments 4,798,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,598,000.00    4,625,368.27          50,533.39        

23



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of March 31, 2015 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
SUCCESSOR AGENCY

Total - CD's -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

CVCB Money Market Accts 015029549
Beginning Balance 131,388.51             131,388.51       
Interest 7/31/14 4.46                4.46                 4.46                

8/31/14 4.46                4.46                 4.46                
9/30/14 4.03                4.03                 4.03                

-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) 9/29/14 (131,397.43)    (131,397.43)     
10/1/14 (4.03)               (4.03)                

-                   
-                   

Subtotal CVCB Money Market 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Subtotal SBI Money Market -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

Ending Balance - Money Market Accts 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Subtotal All Successor Agency Investments 131,388.51             (131,388.51)    -                       (0.00)                (0.00)                      12.95              

Total Investments 5,280,214.02          (331,388.51)    -                       4,948,825.51    4,976,193.78          52,558.17        
Market Value Adjustment 27,368.27               

(331,388.51)     
(331,388.51)     

-                   

24



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: APRIL 15, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Initiation of Proceedings for the Annual Levy of Assessments for Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Council by motion adopt resolution to initiate proceedings for the annual levy of assessments for Landscape and 
Lighting District No. 1 and authorize the City Engineer to file his annual report. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 

The Landscape and Lighting District maintains public landscaping in median islands and landscape strips along 
major streets. The revenue from the district also pays for street lighting costs for areas within the district. All new 
developments are annexed into the district and charged an annual assessment that is collected with property taxes. 
There are currently 12 sub-areas within the Landscape and Lighting District No. 1. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 

None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
This is the first of three actions by Council required by State law for the levy of the annual assessments. The City 
Engineer will prepare a report that will be submitted to the Council for review and approval. The next action required 
by Council will be the approval of the resolution of intention to levy and collect the annual assessments, which will 
set the date for the public hearing required prior to the confirmation of assessments. The final step in the process is 
for Council to conduct the required public hearing, receive any testimony, and confirm the annual assessments. The 
assessment roll is then submitted to the County Assessor for inclusion on the property owner’s tax bill.  No new 
annexations have taken place this past year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 

The annual assessments from Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 are used for maintenance of public 
landscaping and street lighting. Last year the total assessments were $209,663.74. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Map – Assessment Area Boundaries 

  

25



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 3 
2015-2016 LMD Assessment Initiation 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN, CALIFORNIA,  
INITIATING PROCEEDINGS FOR THE ANNUAL LEVY OF ASSESSMENT FOR  

LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING DISTRICT NO. 1 OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
 

 RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Kerman, County of Fresno, California, that: 
 
 WHEREAS, the Council has approved no new annexations to Landscape and Lighting District No. 1 of the 
City of Kerman (herein LMD No. 1) during the period of January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 inclusive; and 
 
 WHEREAS, proceedings for the annual assessment for LMD No. 1 for the fiscal year 2015-2016 need to be 
initiated. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY FOUND, DETERMINED, AND ORDERED as follows: 
 

1. The Council proposes to undertake proceedings for the levy of the annual assessment of LMD No. 1 
under Part 2 of Division 15 of the Streets and Highways Code of the State of California (Section 22500 et 
seq.) generally known as the Landscaping and Lighting Act of 1972 (Herein the “Act”).  

 
2. The City Engineer shall prepare and file a report in accordance with Article 4 (commencing with Section 

22565) of the Act.  
  

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 
15th day of April, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 
 

The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
              
        Stephen B. Hill  

 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

26



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 3 
2015-2016 LMD Assessment Initiation 
  

 
 

Attachment ‘B’ 

27



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: APRIL 15, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, City Manager/Director of Planning 
Subject: Resolution Awarding Contract to Merzon Consulting to Facilitate City Council Goal Setting Workshop 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution awarding contract to Merzon Consulting in the amount not-to-exceed $1,000 to 
facilitate City Council goal setting workshop and authorize the City Manager to sign on behalf of the City of Kerman. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
On March 18, 2015, the City Council reviewed proposals from three consultants to facilitate the upcoming City 
Council goal setting workshop scheduled for May 5. The City Council selected Merzon Consulting as the firm to 
mediate the workshop and directed staff to bring back a contract for Council’s approval. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City Council directed staff to solicit proposal from consultants to moderate the City Council goal setting 
workshop. Staff received proposals from three facilitators out of the eight contacted. Staff presented the top three 
facilitators to the Council on March 18 for review, as follows: 
 

Facilitator Location Price 
Merzon Consulting Fresno $1,000 
Mike Ramsey Visalia $3,400 
Rex Osborne Manteca $1,200 

 
Staff noted that Merzon Consulting has experience facilitating goal setting workshops for the cities of Fowler, 
Mendota, and Reedley along with several non-profit boards and commission. Furthermore, the firm is local, their 
cost to mediate the workshop is reasonable, and the firm is available on May 5. 
 
After some discussion, the City Council selected Merzon Consulting to facilitate the workshop and directed staff to 
bring back a contract for Council’s approval. The contract is in the amount not-to-exceed $1,000 for a six-hour 
workshop on May 5 from 8:30 a.m. to 2:30 p.m. The contract is enclosed as Exhibit ‘A’ to the resolution. 
 

28



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 5 
Merzon Consulting Agreement – Facilitate Council Goal Setting Workshop 
  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The cost of the facilitator will be in an amount not-to-exceed $1,000 and will be paid from the City Manager’ budget. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit ‘A’ 

29



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 5 
Merzon Consulting Agreement – Facilitate Council Goal Setting Workshop 
  
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-__ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT BETWEEN MERZON CONSULTING ("FACILITATOR") 

AND THE CITY OF KERMAN FOR CONSULTING SERVICES 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council agreed to conducting a goal setting workshop for May 5, 2015 and directed 
staff to solicit proposals from experienced facilitators to moderate the workshop; and 
 
 WHEREAS, staff contacted eight consulting firms and received proposals from three firms, as follows: 
 

Facilitator Location Price 
Merzon Consulting Fresno $1,000 
Mike Ramsey Visalia $3,400 
Rex Osborne Manteca $1,200 

 
 WHEREAS, on April 1, 2015 the City Council selected Merzon Consulting as the firm to facilitate the goal 
setting workshop in the amount not-to-exceed $1,000 for a six hour session and directed staff to prepare an 
agreement for City Council review and approval, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the CITY OF KERMAN (“City”) and Merzon Consulting ("Facilitator") wish to enter into an 
agreement for consulting services for the facilitation of the City Council goal setting workshop scheduled for May 5, 
2015. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Kerman that the City of Kerman 
has reviewed the AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES between the City of Kerman and Merzon Consulting 
attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’, and the City Manager is authorized to sign the agreement on behalf of the City of 
Kerman in substantially the form as it currently exists, together with such modifications or revisions as the City 
Manager and the City Attorney shall agree are necessary. 
 
The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 
15th day of April, 2015, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
 
  AYES:      
 NOES:       
         ABSENT:       
       ABSTAIN:       
  
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
       ___________________________________  
       Stephen Hill 
       Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
_________________________________  
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

30



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 5 
Merzon Consulting Agreement – Facilitate Council Goal Setting Workshop 
  

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

Agreement for Consulting Services 
 
 

 

31



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 5 
Merzon Consulting Agreement – Facilitate Council Goal Setting Workshop 
  

 

32



 

 

2014 Annual Report 

33



 

 
Contents 

Message from the Chief ........................................................................................................................ 1 

Overview ................................................................................................................................................ 2 

Department Staffing .............................................................................................................................. 3 

Organizational Chart ............................................................................................................................ 4 

Patrol ....................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Investigations ......................................................................................................................................... 6 

Records .................................................................................................................................................... 6 

Reserve Police Officers .......................................................................................................................... 7 

Crime Statistics....................................................................................................................................... 8 

Evidence and Property ....................................................................................................................... 10 

Crime Prevention ................................................................................................................................. 10 

Animal Control .................................................................................................................................... 12 

Police Chaplain .................................................................................................................................... 13 

Community Outreach ......................................................................................................................... 13 

School Resource Officer ...................................................................................................................... 15 

Explorer Program ................................................................................................................................ 16 

Kerman Citizen’s on Patrol (COPs) .................................................................................................. 16 

Grants and Special Funding Programs ............................................................................................. 17 

New Employees ................................................................................................................................... 18 

Awards and Recognition .................................................................................................................... 19 

Appendix A: Comparative Part I Crime Rates Ranking ................................................................ 20 

Appendix B: Part I Crimes – Five Year Comparison ...................................................................... 21 

Appendix C: Officer Initiated Activities – Year Comparison ....................................................... 22 

 

  

34



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 1ü 

Message from the Chief 
The Kerman Police Department is pleased to present the 2014 Annual Report.  

The Report summarizes our activities for the year and 
provides an opportunity for us to share all that we do in 
helping to keep the community a safe place to live, work 
and do business. The men and woman of the Kerman 
Police Department are proud of the work that they do to 
serve and protect the citizens of Kerman. The Department 
understands that a successful police department must 
balance pro-active policing aimed at reducing crime with 
the goal of maintaining a positive relationship with the 
community it serves. 

As reflected in this Report, violet crime in Kerman 
decreased by 21% in 2014 compared to the previous year, 
as measured by the FBI. Although property crimes were 
slightly up 5% for the same period, they are down 32% from 
the high in 2010. It is important to point out that vehicle thefts were down 13% in 2014. This can 
be partially attributed to the department’s ongoing focus on implementing strategies aimed at 
deterring and investigating vehicle thefts. 

As we look ahead, the department remains committed to building upon the strong working 
relationship we have with our citizens by expanding the Neighborhood Watch Program, Crime 
Free Multi-Family Housing, Citizens on Patrol, and Youth Explorer Program. This past year, the 
department facilitated the creation of a new Neighborhood Watch group in an established 
neighborhood. The department welcomes this newest neighborhood and applauds their efforts 
at working with the department on creating a safe area. This brings the total to two 
participating neighborhoods citywide.  

In summary, the Kerman Police Department encompasses many programs and activities 
beyond patrol. These areas include Animal Control, Community Outreach, School Resource 
Officer, Reserve Officer Program, and several other special programs. We take great pride in 
being a resource to the community that we serve. 

The Kerman Police Department looks forward to continuing a strong tradition of delivering a 
high level of public safety to the citizens of Kerman. We thank the City Council and the 
community for its support and confidence. We also appreciate the assistance provided by other 
City Departments in our public safety efforts. 

Chief of Police Joseph Blohm 

35



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 2ü 

Overview  
The Kerman Police Department currently has 19 full-time sworn 
officers including the Chief of Police who serve a community of 
more than 14,000 residents. Of these, 17 officers are funded 
through general fund dollars, one is funded through the SLESF 
grant, and one is funded through the Department of Justice’s 
COPS grant. The department also has four non-sworn positions; 2 
are assigned in the Records Department, one is assigned as the 
Administrative Assistant, and one is assigned as the Animal 
Control Officer.  

The Police Department is organized into Patrol, Investigation, 
Records and Administration. The function of each task is an 
important component in maintaining the professional operation 
expected by the community we serve. 

The department utilizes paid and volunteer Reserve Police Officers to enhance the quality and 
quantity of public safety within the City of Kerman. Reserve Officers are graduates of the state 
approved POST (Police Officer Standards of Training) Police Academy. These patrol-ready 
reserve officers are an asset to the department, enabling the department to meet peak demands 
for service and to direct resources at specific locations or crime problems. 

The Kerman Police Department has a Crime Analyst funded through the Edward J. Byrne 
Multi-jurisdiction grant. The Crime analyst gathers statistical documents to aid in 
understanding and identifying crime patterns to more effective dispatch law enforcement 
resources. 

The department strongly believes that preventing crime is a community effort and it is our role 
to provide the training and information necessary to help our citizens take an active part in 
crime fighting efforts.  

Every member of the Kerman Police Department is committed to the  
City’s Organizational Mission Service. Safety. Livability. 

 
  

• • • 

“Law enforcement 
officers are never 
‘off duty.’ They are 
dedicated public 
servants who are 
sworn to protect 
public safety.” 

• • • 

36



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 3ü 

Department Staffing  
Chief of Police  Joseph Blohm 

Administrative Assistant  Mary Rodrigues 

Administrative Sergeant  Terri Cubillos 

Patrol Sergeants 

 Will Barcoma 
 Jeff Davis 
 Chris Nelson 
 Ron Madruga 

Detective  Jeff Belding 

Patrol Officers 

 Erica Antuna 
 Isaias Barbosa 
 Tom Chapman 
 Peter Magallon 
 Sandra Mendoza 
 Lee Ness 
 James Nevis 
 Erika Rodriguez 
 Tiwana Manpreet 
 Dustin Lehman 
 EJ LaBerteaux 
 Jacob Dunn 

Reserve Officers 
Paid 

Level 1 Dylan Seroka 
Level 1 Miguel Antuna 
Level 1 Nathan Moon 
Level 1 David Kaser 

Reserve Officers  
Volunteer 

Level 1 Scott Armstrong 
Level 2 Lance Badasci 
Level 2 Linda Ledezma 
Level 2 David Valenzuela 
Level 2 Matt Lopez 
Level 2 Kyle Godfrey 

Records  Donnie Ramirez 
Linda Ledezma 

Animal Control  Joseph Ramer 

Crime Analyst  Alicia Engellenner 

37



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 4ü 

Organizational Chart 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Chief of Police     
Joseph Blohm

Special Investigation Patrol Records Management Animal Control

Administrative Assistant

38



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 5ü 

Patrol 
One of the core functions of the department is 
community patrol. These services include handling 
dispatched calls for traffic enforcement, traffic 
accident investigations, proactive patrol, conducting 
preliminary criminal investigations and ensuring the 
safety and security of the community. 

Patrol is responsible for many programs like the 
School Resource Officer Program, Neighborhood 
Watch Program, Crime Free Multi-Family Housing 
Program to name a few. Their objective is safety for all residents. 

The department maintains data on officer and self-initiated activity levels throughout the year. 
This data covers several areas like vehicle stops, vehicle checks, subject checks, attempt pickups 
and probation parole searches. As reflected in Chart 1 below, patrol activity is highest in the 
area of vehicle stops followed by subject checks and arrests.  

Vehicle stops is the most common activity that officers perform. Traffic enforcement is an 
important part of keeping our streets safe by removing or reducing drunk drivers, unlicensed 
drivers, or uninsured drivers. In 2014, officers conducted 3,711 vehicle stops and issued 904 
citations. Subject checks on individuals who are on parole/probation or are acting suspiciously 
is an important part of policing in terms of keeping violators off the streets. Information 
obtained during subject checks is useful when conducting various ongoing investigations. In 
2014, officers conducted 1,500 subject checks. The department will continue to focus on 
reducing crime through police officers' self-initiated activities while on patrol. 

Chart 1 

 

Vehicle Stops Vehicle Checks Subject Checks Attempt
Pickups

Probation
Parole

Searches
DUI Arrests Total Arrests

Activity 3,711 530 1,500 247 80 50 877

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000
2014 Officer Actvity

39



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 6ü 

Investigations 
In 2012, the department reestablished a detective position.  
Officer Jeff Belding is designated detective for the 
department. Having a detective on staff has expanded 
investigative activities of the department leading to more 
arrests and convictions. To aid in investigation of crimes 
where the perpetrator uses their phone to deal drugs, sell 
stolen items and for gang communications, the department 
has purchased a computer forensic software product called 
Cellebrite. The program allows the detective to extract data 
from over 11,000 different cell phone types, mobile devices or 
SDRAM card in the filed or in the office. The software is an 
added tool for our detective to assist in investigations.  

Records 
The records division is an integral part of the day-to-day function of the department. The unit is 
staffed by two full-time record technicians whose key role is to maintain the integrity of the 
Police Department’s records. 

They are responsible for data entry of incident reports, arrests, citations, traffic collisions, towed 
vehicles, field contacts and warrants. This includes the maintenance, dissemination and security 
of all documents as well as providing service and information to the public  

The Records Department also provides fingerprinting and Live Scan services. 

  

Detective Belding  

Donnie Ramirez, Records 

40



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 7ü 

Reserve Police Officers 
The Kerman Police Department utilizes paid and volunteer Reserve Police Officers to enhance 
the quality and quantity of public safety within the City of Kerman. Reserve officers are 
graduates of the state approved POST (Police Officer Standards of Training) Police Academy 
and are selected after an extensive examination process. 

Selected candidates are sworn in as Level 2 Reserves who work as a second officer on patrol 
conducting normal patrol duties. The Level 2 Reserves also begin as 16-week POST Field 
Training Officer (FTO) Program with a designated training officer. At the completion of the 
FTO training, the Reserve Officers are promoted to Level 1 status. 

Level 1 Reserve Officers are allowed by POST to work solo patrol assuming all duties and 
responsibilities of a full time officer. These patrol ready reserve officers are an asset to the 
department, enabling us to meet peak demands for service and to direct resources at specific 
locations or crime problems. POST requires that all reserves must work a minimum of 20 hours 
per month to maintain their active status, but POST does not govern whether they are volunteer 
reserves or paid reserves. Each agency in the state has the option to have volunteer and/or paid 
reserves. Kerman PD utilizes both paid and volunteer reserves.   

The Reserve Officer Program is an asset to the police department. Reserve officers provide 
additional staffing that the department can utilize during peak periods; they allow staff to 
maintain our staffing levels while our full time officers are in training, on vacation, or are sick.  
In recent years, all of the newly hired full time officers have been selected from the ranks of our 
reserve program with the exception of one.  During 2015, we are still funded for the seven paid 
Level 1 positions, and we continue to recruit and train in an effort to fill those positions 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

41



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 8ü 

Crime Statistics 
The Kerman Police Department is pleased to report that Part 1 Violent Crime in the City is 
down 21% as compared to 2013 as shown in Chart 2 below. This is the lowest violent crime rate 
in the past 5 years. Violent crimes peaked in 2011, and dropped 32% in 2104. Violent crimes 
consist of aggravated assault, rape, and robbery. Kerman remains a very safe city with very 
little violent crime. Officer productivity has been the difference in our success over the past 
year. They understand the direct connection between officer activity levels and criminal activity 
levels. Our officers continue to provide an outstanding job making Kerman a safe place to live.  

Chart 2

 

Chart 3 shows Part I Property Crimes. Although property crimes are slightly up by 5% in 2014 
compared to last year, they dropped 32% from the peak in 2010. Part I Property Crimes consist 
of burglary, larceny-theft, and auto theft. The department will continue pro-active policing in an 
attempt to reduce property crimes. 

Chart 3  

 

39

50

36
43

34

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

0% 28% -28% 19% -21%

Part 1 Violent Crimes*

*Includes: homicide, rape, robbery and aggravated 

671
558 605

437 458

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

0% -17% 8% -28% 5%

Part 1 Property Crimes* 

*Includes: burglary, larceny-theft and vehicle theft 

42



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 9ü 

710
608 641

480 492

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

0% -14% 5% -25% 3%

Total Part 1 Crimes*

Chart 4 shows Property Crimes by category. Vehicle thefts dropped 13% in 2014 and 51% from 
the peak in 2011. Although larceny-thefts and burglaries are slightly up in 2014, they are down 
70% and 76%, respectively, compared to the peak in 2010. The department will continue to focus 
on investigating Part 1 Property Crimes. 

 

Total combined Part 1 Violent and Property Crimes are shown in Chart 5. Total part 1 Crimes 
increased slightly in 2014, but are down 31 percent from the peak of 710 in 2010. 

 

 
In 2015, the Department will be focused on continued community oriented policing philosophy; 
fostering strong partnerships between our citizens and the Police Department. This 
collaboration will continue to enhance our crime fighting tactics and reduce the fear of crime in 
our community.   

Chart 4 

Chart 5 

43



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 10ü 

Evidence and Property 
The Police Department maintains a property and evidence 
storage room. Officers Manpreet Tiwana and Erica 
Mendoza are assigned to evidence and property. They log 
in, classify, store, dispense, destroy and release property 
and evidence to its rightful owner. They also prepare 
evidence for court presentation and/or for destruction and 
auction. 

Evidence and property has constant checks and balances including audits, inventories and 
random spot checks performed throughout the year to assure all policies are being followed. 

Evidence and property is supervised by Sergeant Barcoma. 

Crime Prevention 
The Department’s philosophy is a community oriented policing attitude. Kerman’s officers have 
fostered strong partnerships with the citizens. This type of collaboration greatly enhances our 
crime fighting tactics and tends to reduce crime and the fear of crime in our community. 

Crime Free Multi-Family Housing Program 

The Crime Free Multi-Housing Program began in Mesa, Arizona and 
is designed to combat rising crime in rental communities. The program 
accomplishes this through a “Lease Addendum” which sets forth the 
zero tolerance policy that the tenant agrees to and signs prior to the 
lease or rental agreement. This gives landlords and the police 
department another tool to evict problem tenants. 

In 2013 Sgt. Wil Barcoma completed the instructor course and the City 
of Kerman became a member of the Crime Free Multi-Housing 
Program.  

The goal for the program this coming year is to train two additional officers and certify at least 
three apartment complexes and the properties managed by the Housing Authority. The first 
step in certification is an 8 hour training course for the landlords or property managers. 

  

Sergeant Wil Barcoma  

44



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 11ü 

Neighborhood Watch Program 

The concept of Neighborhood Watch evolved in the US in the 
1960’s as a crime prevention tool. The concept was to organize 
groups of citizens devoted to crime prevention within 
neighborhoods by keeping an eye out on one another’s 
properties, patrolling their street, and reporting suspicious 
activities to the police.  

One of the goals of the program is to educate residents on 
security and safety in their homes and community. 
Neighbourhood Watch works because most criminals do not like to work in areas where they 
may be detected. A criminal's chance of being detected increases when neighbours are alert and 
watchful for suspicious activity. 

Although Kerman Police Department has participated in the program for many years, there are 
currently two active watch groups in Kerman. The department is committed to growing and 
expanding neighbourhood watch groups across the City through the use of non-sworn 
personnel or volunteers. 

Sergeant Wil Barcoma oversees the program and Officer Sandra Mendoza was recently 
assigned to assist in organizing neighborhoods, hosting events, and coordinating activities that 
keep the residents engaged. The goal of the department is to strengthen and expand 
neighborhood watch program citywide. 

The department interacts with the neighborhood watch groups in a variety of activities 
throughout the year: 

• Attends neighborhood watch meetings 
• Participates in neighborhood socials, e.g., potlucks or block parties 
• Provides training on crime prevention tips 
• Responds to reports of crime and suspicion activity  

45



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 12ü 

Dogs Cats Other
Returned 50 0 0
Adopted 35 109 210
Euthanized 174 0 1
Total 259 109 211

0
50

100
150
200
250
300

2014 Animal Control

Animal Control  
The Kerman Police Department is responsible for animal control 
services. Animal control picks-up and impounds stray animals, 
enforces animal laws, handles bite reports and vicious animals and 
promotes adoption of sheltered animals. Animal control also 
focuses on protecting animals and helping the public become 
responsible pet owners. 

The City’s animal shelter is located at the city yard at 15485 W. 
Church Ave. Joseph Ramer is the designated Animal Control. The 

Kerman Animal Shelter is only a short-term facility and does not conduct adoptions. Adoptions 
are facilitated by Adopt-a-Pet. If no one claims the animal, attempts are made to find a new 
home for the animal. If new owners are not found, the strays are euthanized. 

As reflected in Chart 6 below, 259 dogs and 109 cats were impounded in 2014. Of those, 19% of 
the dogs were returned to the owners and 14% of the dogs were rescued and adopted. The 
“other” category represents confiscation of 210 parrots, turtles, rabbits, and parakeets from a 
residence that was breeding them for sale. The animals were all adopted with the assistance of 
Liberty Animal Services 

Looking ahead, the animal control division will focus on the following: 

• Design, finance and construct a new animal shelter facility 
• Creating a volunteer program 
• Expand adoption program by partnering with “no kill” shelters for the placement of animals 
• Form a spray, neuter, and chip program 
• Purchase a new animal control vehicle 
• Implement an intake and login process 

Chart 6 

46



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 13ü 

 

Police Chaplain  
The Police Chaplain Program creates a partnership with various 
faith-based leaders of our community to respond and assist our 
officers when the need arises. The program’s concept is that by 
having the Police and Clergy working together during times of 
crisis or incidents, the community will receive a more 
comprehensive response for those in need.  

The faith-based leaders will perform tasks of a more emotional, social 
or spiritual nature while the officers handle those tasks that are of a law enforcement nature. 
The Police Chaplain is to provide support for Police Officer and civilians in their needs. 
Chaplains are there to provide appropriate assistance, advice, comfort, counsel and referrals to 
those in need who may request support. When called up, the volunteer chaplains will respond 
in their personal vehicles to the scene wearing a department approved uniform. 

We currently have two active chaplains in the program, Pastors Paul Moore and Ray Ynigues. 
These volunteers also assist the police department in various police project such as Harvest 
Festival, Christmas Parade, National Night Out, 4th of July, Christmas Give Away, as well as 
riding along on patrol. 

Community Outreach  
Throughout the year the City of Kerman hosts several events. At each event, the Kerman Police 
Department provides orderliness, safety and participation. 

National Night Out 

The introduction of National Night Out, “America’s Night-Out 
Against Crime”, began in 1984 in an effort to promote 
community involvement in crime prevention activities, 
neighborhood camaraderie and send a message to criminals 
letting them know that neighborhoods are organized and 
fighting back. 

Kerman Police Department is 
proud to be a participant in this 
program; celebrating each August 
with the community.  

47



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 14ü 

Fourth of July Celebration 

The City of Kerman hosts a Community Independence Day 
Celebration, which includes food, crafts, children’s activities 
and fireworks. 

Our Police Department patrols the event and provides a safe, 
fun family-based celebration. 

Harvest Festival and Parade 

The Kerman Harvest Festival is an 
annual event held in September at 
Kerckhoff Park. The event runs 
Thursday through Sunday. The 
event highlight is the Harvest 
Parade that runs through 
Kerman’s main street. 

The Police Department’s presence 
and patrol provides safety to all 

attendees. Being an interactive 
community Police Department, the officers even partake in 
the fun. 

Holiday Pageantry of Lights 

The Holiday Pageantry of Lights parade is held during 
winter break. The Department is proud to report that the 
residents enjoy this hometown main street parade knowing 
that they are safe with the Kerman Police on patrol. 

Relay for Life Event 

The American Cancer 
Society Relay for Life is the world's largest and most 
impactful fundraising event to end cancer. Kerman has 
hosted the event locally for over 3 years. Each year 
Kerman Police plays an active role in the event by 
helping keep the participants safe as they celebrate 
around the clock. They have even helped set up 
attractions, like the hot air balloon event. 

48



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 15ü 

Bike Give Away 

During the Annual National Night Out Event the department 
orchestrates a Bike Give Away Program. Qualified residents 
are given the chance to win a bicycle. In 2014, 20 bicycles for all 
ages were given out. The bikes are “tuned up” by Vern Dillon. 
He works closely with the Kiwanis Club (Caruthers and Old 
Town Clovis) and the Fresno County Sheriff’s youth 
foundation for Public Safety to prepare the bikes. 

Child Seat Training 

Child safety seat checkpoints routinely discover that eight out 
of ten children are not properly restrained in appropriate child 
safety seats or belt systems. Improper installation of child 
safety seats and/or misuse of the seats are the most common 
problems found. Kerman Police Department provides hands-
on assistance and instruction for child seat use to the public 
hosting training at various times throughout the year. 

School Resource Officer 
The Kerman Police Department has a dedicated part-time 
School Resource Officer (SRO) assigned to the schools. The 
SRO takes an interactive approach with the Kerman Unified 
School District (KUSD) students. They participate in a variety 
of activities including the following: 

• Act as a liaison between school administration and 
the Police Department in order to provide a safe 
school environment.  

• Works to prevent juvenile delinquency through close 
contact and positive relationships with students 

• Investigates allegations of criminal incidents. 
• Patrol campuses and surrounding neighborhoods. 

The SRO is visible within the school community and is 
encouraged to attend and participate in school functions and to 
build working relationships with the school’s staff as well as 
with student and parent groups.  Currently Level I Reserve Officer Miguel Antuna is assigned 
as the SRO. The Kerman Police Department and KUSD are in discussions to expand the SRO 
program to include a full-time position.  

49



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 16ü 

Explorer Program 
The Police department Explorer Program is a career 
development program which establishes awareness, along 
with firsthand knowledge of the challenges and job skills 
that make up law enforcement. Young men and women 
ages 14—20 wear uniforms, ride along with sworn peace 
officers and assist the officers in completing paperwork. 

The Kerman Police Explorer Program is administered and 
instructed by Officers Eric Antuna and Dustin Lehman 
under the supervision of Sergeant Chris Nelson. The 
officers provide leadership and a positive role model to the 

students while teaching them about discipline, respect, honor and dedication to excellence in all 
areas of their lives.  

There are currently 9 participants in the programs. The Explorers meet with the officers 
monthly and participate throughout the year in various police project such as Harvest Festival, 
Christmas Parade, National Night Out, 4th of July, Christmas Give Away, as well as riding along 
on patrol. The department plans on purchasing new uniforms for the Explorers and prepare 
them for statewide competition in 2016. 
 
Kerman Citizen’s on Patrol (COPs) 
The Citizens on Patrol (COPs) Program is designed to 
enhance the partnership between the Kerman Police 
Department and the community.  

Program members are volunteers who donate time to 
provide crime deterrence through high-visibility patrols, 
report in-progress crimes, and documentation of 
suspicious persons, activities, and unsafe neighborhood 
conditions. The City currently has two volunteers on staff 
and continues to actively recruit new participants. 

The volunteers wear uniforms and drive a Kerman Police vehicle. Their directive is to observe 
and report, but not to engage. These volunteers also assist the police department in various 
community functions such as the Harvest Festival, Pageantry of Lights Parade, National Night 
Out, 4th of July Celebration, Christmas Give-Away, as well as riding along on patrol. 

50



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 17ü 

Grants and Special Funding Programs 
 

Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) 
Grant 

The City of Kerman received a COPS Grant in 2012 from 
the U.S. Department of Justice to hire one full-time officer 
for a four-year period. The grant requires that the 
department hire a military veteran, and the grant will fund 
the officer 75% in the first year, 50% in the second year and 
25% in the third year. The city will pay 100% of the 
officer’s salary in the fourth year. 

Kerman is proud to have hired Officer Jacob Dunn under the COPS grant. Officer Dunn is a 
veteran of the U.S. Air Force Reserve.  

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funds (SLESF) 

The Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Funds (SLESF) is provided by the State and 
funded though Fresno County’s allocation. The City receives $100,000 annual to fund one sworn 
officer and a portion of the cost for Community Service Officer. As with any State-funded 
program, these funds can be suspended in the next budget year. 

Driving Under the Influence (DUI) Avoid 21 Grant  

The DUI Avoid the 21 Grant is facilitated through the City of 
Clovis. The grant was created by the California Office of 
Traffic Safety to reduce alcohol-involved fatalities and 
injuries and raise general public awareness regarding the 
problems associated with drinking and driving. Under the 
grant the City receives compensation when an officer 
participates in a DUI checkpoint for overtime hours. In 2013 
three Kerman officers received awards for leading the 
department in DUI arrests under this program. 

Fresno Housing Authority Criminal Reporting Agreement 

The Kerman Police Department under an agreement with the Fresno Housing Authority 
receives $500 per month to provide added patrol activities at the Helsem Terrace apartment 
complex. The weekly observation and activity report is sent to the Property Manager of the 
Housing Authority. The funds are used to augment the cost for patrol and reporting services. 

  

51



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 18ü 

Crime Analyst Grant 

The City of Kerman is a participating member of the Joint Law 
Enforcement Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between 
the County of Fresno, all fifteen cities, and the California Board 
of State and Community Corrections for the receipt of $1.1 
million in state grant funds for front-line law enforcement 
services. This is the second year of a three year grant. 

Members of the MOU agreed to use the funds to pay for an 
electronic filing system with the District Attorney's Office and 
hire 6 Crime Analyst county-wide. The electronic filing of 
criminal complaint packages (e-filing) would result in savings 
of law enforcement staff time by providing case management 
and case filing electronically.  

One of the Crime Analyst serves the west side cities and is housed in the Kerman Police 
Department. The analyst focuses on tracking the most serious, violent, habitually non-compliant 
individuals who are on parole/probation. The analyst also collects and disseminates data to help 
formulate crime prevention strategies at the local level. Officer Alicia Engellenner is the 
designated crime analyst serving the west side communities. 

New Employees 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Res. Ofc. Dustin Lehman 
Hired on August 4, 2014 

Res. Ofc. EJ Medina LaBerteaux 
Hired on August 4, 2014 

Res. Ofc. Jacob Dunn 
Hired December 16, 2014 

52



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 19ü 

Officer Sandra Mendoza  

Sergeant Davis, Chief Blohm 

Officer Eric Antuna  

Officer Peter Magallon  

Officer Tom Chapman 

Awards and Recognition 
 
On April 16, 2014, Sergeant Jeff Davis received the California High Patrol 
10851 Award. The qualifications are any patrol officer or sergeant who, 
during a 12-month period, meets any of the following requirements 1) 
Arrest suspect in six separate incident of occupied moving/rolling stolen 
vehicles or; 2) Locate and recover a total of 12 stolen vehicles of which a 
minimum of three must be occupied by a suspect and moving/rolling, or 
3) Develop information resulting in the identification of a vehicle theft 
ring, subsequent arrest of two or more suspects, and the recovery of at least 
ten vehicles.       

On October 22, 2014, The California Office of Traffic 
Safety, Mothers Against Drunk Drivers, and the 
“Avoid the 21” campaign, held a recognition 
luncheon in Fresno, to recognize the efforts of 
officers in the Fresno/Madera area in combating 
Drunk Drivers in 2013.  

Kerman PD arrested 60 drivers who were driving under the influence of 
alcohol or drugs. This was an increase from the arrests made in 
2012.   Officers Sandra Mendoza, Eric Antuna, and Peter Magallon each 
received a plaque in honor for leading the department in DUI arrests. 

 

On November 13, 2014 the Fresno Fire Department 
recognized two of our officers during their Awards and Promotional 
Ceremony. Officers Erika Rodriguez and Tom Chapman were honored for 
their actions on a medical incident on June 1, 2014 that occurred at the Golden 
Meadows apartment complex. 

Officers Rodriguez and Chapman responded to an emergency call regarding a 
child found at the bottom of the swimming pool. The officers responded 
quickly and performed CPR on the child until EMS arrived. The child 
regained a pulse and started breathing before arriving to the hospital. EMS 
staff credits the actions and efforts of our officers in rendering medical aid 
that gave the child a fighting chance and an opportunity to reach the hospital 
to received medical care.  

Officer Erika Rodriguez 

53



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 20ü 

Appendix A: Comparative Part I Crime Rates- Ranking 
 

The ranking below is based on the number of crime rates per capita for the cities in Fresno 
County. Data from the FBI’s annual Unified Crime Report (UCR) is used to determine crime 
rate for each jurisdiction reporting crime statistics. The data is up to 2013 because the FBI 
doesn’t release their collected data until one year after it is received. 

Although not reflected below, Kerman was ranked 12th of 14 cities with the lowest Part I Violent 
Crime rates (rape, robbery, aggravated assault). In terms of Part I Property Crimes (burglary, 
theft, vehicle theft), Kerman was ranked 6th out of 14 cities.  

Overall, Kerman is a very safe City with very little violent crime. The Kerman Police 
Department will continue to work on reducing property crimes.  

2010 - Kerman was the 3rd highest crime rate per capita out of 13 cities reporting 

2011 - Kerman was the 6th highest crime rate per capita out of 13 cities reporting 

2012 - Kerman was the 6th highest crime rate per capita out of 13 cities reporting 

2013 - Kerman was the 9th highest crime rate per capita out of 14 cities reporting 

 

  

54



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 21ü 

Appendix B: Part I Property Crimes – Five Year Comparison 
 

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC Total
2010 34 19 8 18 13 9 9 9 8 14 9 22 172
2011 8 12 10 6 4 8 9 18 16 11 9 7 118
2012 9 6 7 11 10 13 16 14 17 8 9 6 126
2013 9 7 5 8 6 6 6 9 14 8 13 29 120
2014 16 20 10 6 10 11 7 5 13 16 8 10 132

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC Total
2010 57 21 27 50 39 31 21 36 17 16 17 29 361
2011 37 25 39 26 21 22 23 25 30 18 22 13 301
2012 26 24 24 42 28 21 33 36 32 30 25 32 353
2013 18 12 19 15 18 18 12 8 18 26 26 45 235
2014 20 16 20 20 16 24 24 20 28 20 22 25 255

JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC Total
2010 15 6 15 9 8 11 19 5 13 12 11 14 138
2011 11 20 19 14 8 13 4 13 21 8 3 5 139
2012 8 11 10 12 11 3 10 10 9 12 16 14 126
2013 6 4 5 3 7 5 4 6 8 11 11 12 82
2014 15 9 5 2 2 3 8 6 4 2 6 9 71

Motor Vehicle Theft

Burglary

Theft-Larceny

 

  

55



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 22ü 

Appendix C: Officer Initiated Activities – Yearly Comparison 
 

Vehicle Stops
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2012 234 196 241 227 272 265 211 262 248 191 203 313 2863
2013 240 233 214 210 340 288 349 446 392 357 352 382 3803
2014 263 276 401 340 403 238 308 367 251 268 248 348 3711

Vehicle Checks
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2012 64 43 49 32 42 49 36 41 38 43 33 34 504
2013 45 50 42 25 33 65 60 46 46 60 76 78 626
2014 85 51 56 55 39 26 51 31 30 30 32 48 530

Subject Checks
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2012 59 55 84 90 162 166 162 173 145 116 119 153 1484
2013 167 121 161 142 187 261 247 227 144 170 222 161 2210
2014 184 140 192 140 111 130 128 122 101 88 65 99 1500

Attempt Pickups 
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2012 24 18 20 8 3 11 3 5 2 8 11 10 123
2013 16 18 21 12 33 22 28 52 41 31 39 22 335
2014 23 22 34 20 27 16 9 29 9 15 22 21 247

Probation/Parole Searches
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2012 1 0 3 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 1 0 8
2013 0 1 0 2 1 1 15 9 4 3 5 4 45
2014 11 1 6 13 7 11 9 9 2 2 9 0 80

Arrests: Total
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2010 49 39 36 22 27 36 23 26 46 34 26 24 388
2011 22 16 23 27 34 28 23 31 39 24 30 49 346
2012 44 44 57 47 73 57 69 77 78 67 67 46 726
2013 59 52 63 46 95 75 66 85 96 99 80 96 912
2014 90 77 75 73 76 79 60 79 69 65 67 67 877

Arrests:  Dispatched Calls
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2013 9 11 19 11 20 21 17 17 30 35 30 44 264
2014 27 23 10 19 26 29 15 23 20 18 22 20 252

Arrests:  Warrant (Attempt P/U)
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2013 24 24 11 15 40 19 20 19 21 15 24 21 253
2014 30 29 27 18 24 28 18 25 17 20 19 18 273

 

56



2014 Annual Report 
• • • 

ü 23ü 

DUI Arrests
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2011 0 3 2 5 1 2 0 5 1 0 5 3 27
2012 2 6 4 2 8 5 3 5 4 1 8 7 55
2013 1 2 3 2 5 4 2 14 7 7 4 9 60
2014 2 5 3 6 6 4 3 3 6 6 1 5 50

Traffic Enforcement Citations
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2010 32 38 39 49 48 49 36 46 59 50 48 41 535
2011 29 26 43 30 53 87 77 80 68 80 111 151 835
2012 132 109 139 114 162 167 116 183 141 101 84 152 1600
2013 91 80 103 84 169 91 107 145 146 135 102 121 1374
2014 77 74 108 55 90 71 75 83 65 61 67 78 904

KMO/Parking Enforcement Citations
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2010 10 26 10 13 14 7 15 28 34 26 15 3 201
2011 9 13 11 15 30 21 16 20 29 26 36 44 270
2012 77 36 39 18 48 58 43 40 31 35 35 28 488
2013 57 77 20 13 21 25 35 19 22 72 34 28 423
2014 26 18 23 13 21 15 13 0 9 7 4 13 162

Reports Written
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2010 228 198 200 213 231 198 219 224 208 231 148 198 2434
2011 167 218 230 193 211 214 197 256 248 228 177 255 2594
2012 270 253 275 293 360 298 353 372 267 263 324 284 3612
2013 269 207 256 242 358 275 324 357 373 332 324 328 3643
2014 223 311 296 252 285 279 294 251 243 232 247 243 3139

Community Contacts
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2010 27 27 29 29 33 47 37 41 31 28 26 26 381
2011 17 23 17 28 23 34 35 39 23 16 33 42 330
2012 64 47 35 36 58 65 49 43 43 57 57 68 622
2013 44 40 28 37 40 52 57 56 46 55 57 56 568
2014 46 24 57 51 32 41 38 34 30 24 30 39 444

Field Interviews
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2011 1 5 7 3 4 2 10 6 4 7 15 7 75
2012 35 42 37 20 41 41 44 41 31 33 30 31 422
2013 32 31 37 29 41 41 66 69 46 51 67 58 568
2014 57 37 56 48 40 32 37 16 27 19 27 17 413

Patrol Checks
Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Totals

2013 479 471 399 380 364 359 382 463 394 442 412 448 4993
2014 360 294 381 349 336 325 282 286 245 265 282 394 3799  

57



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

 MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
 Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
 COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
 Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: APRIL 15, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Jerry Jones, City Engineer 
Subject: Presentation of Pavement Management System 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council select the preferred alternative for pavement management and direct Staff to begin implementing the 
preferred alternative. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
Staff has developed a Pavement Management System (PMS) using StreetSaver software in order to more efficiently 
manage the City’s paved street network. The PMS provides Staff with the ability to track completed preventative 
maintenance and rehabilitation projects, review the current condition of specific street segments, and analyze 
various planning scenarios for the most efficient use of available funding for projects. Staff has completed the 
necessary field inspections, data input, and scenario analysis for the City’s PMS. The City’s overall network 
pavement condition index is currently 74, which falls into the “Very Good” condition category. A budget scenario with 
$600,000 in annual expenditures with 20% allocated to preventative maintenance projects over the next 10 years is 
Staff’s recommended alternative. The recommended alternative will most effectively manage the City’s street 
network with the funding available, but the condition of the street network will trend downward over the next 10 years 
without an increase in the funding directed towards pavement projects. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City currently owns and maintains approximately 60 miles of paved streets. In order to maintain the quality of 
the pavement to the greatest extent possible, the City completes street sealing and rehabilitation (overlays and 
reconstruction) projects on an annual basis. The street projects completed over the last 20 years are shown on the 
map included as Attachment A. The annual number and scope of street projects completed by the City is 
determined by balancing available funding and need. There are three significant rehabilitation projects included in 
the City’s budget. The budgeted projects are shown on the map included as Attachment B. The projects will be 
funded with Local Transportation Funds (LTF) and Federal Regional Surface Transportation Program (RSTP) funds. 
 
Over the years, staff has established annual street projects to be included in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP) based on visual inspection, pavement age, and complaints by residents. In order to more efficiently manage 
the City’s street network, Staff recommended that the City develop a Pavement Management System utilizing 

58



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 12 
Pavement Management System 
  
StreetSaver pavement management software. StreetSaver is the recommended PMS software by the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) and is used by all cities and counties in the San Francisco Bay area and over 
250 other public and private organizations nationwide. StreetSaver helps agencies make informed decisions 
regarding their street network, preventing potential in-effective use of funds by aiding in the diagnosis of pavement 
condition and planning cost-effective maintenance and rehabilitation projects. 
 
The development of a PMS was included in the City’s FY 2014/2015 budget and staff began the development of the 
PMS in summer of 2014. The steps for the initial development of the system are summarized as follows: 
 

1. Pavement Inspection: The City’s street network was broken up into individual segments, typically from 
intersection to intersection. Each segment is visually inspected in the field and the type and quantity of 
pavement failures were documented.  

2. Assignment of Pavement Condition Index (PCI): Based on the type and quantity of failures observed, a PCI 
was assigned to each segment. The PCI is a numerical value between 1 and 100 which is used to rate the 
condition of the pavement. 

3. The data collected during the inspection and PCI for each segment are entered into the PMS software. In 
addition, the physical geometry of the street (i.e. length and width), classification, and previous maintenance 
and rehabilitation (if applicable) were input. 

 
The PCIs for the City’s street network are shown on the map included as Attachment C. With all of the information 
input, StreetSaver can calculate a weighted PCI for the entire street network. The City’s current overall PCI is 74, 
which falls into the “Very Good” category. However, it must be pointed out that the overall PCI is slightly skewed by 
the number of miles of new pavement that have been constructed by new development in the last 10 to 15 years. As 
this pavement ages, it will began to negatively affect the overall PCI if not properly maintained. Attachment D 
provides a current summary of the condition of the City’s street network, including the condition of pavement by 
percentage. Approximately 14% of the City’s pavement is in poor or very poor condition, while 68% is in very good 
condition. 
 
The overall goal of the PMS is to maintain the condition of the City’s streets in the good to very good categories. At 
these levels, the pavement requires only preventative maintenance, primarily seal treatments. Costs for preventative 
maintenance treatments range from approximately $2 to $10 per square yard, compared to rehabilitation treatments 
which range from $20 to $65 per square yard. Once the condition of pavement falls into the poor or very poor 
categories, it will typically require overlay or reconstruction. The goal is to determine the appropriate funding balance 
between preventative maintenance and rehabilitation. 
 
In order to determine the appropriate funding balance and most efficient use of funds, the average annual funding 
for street projects was needed. Staff reviewed the annual LTF revenue (Gas Tax, TDA, Measure C, etc.) for the last 
5 years and also the available projections for FY 2015/2016. Upon review, it was determined that approximately 
$450,000 is available for street projects annually, after subtracting the average annual operations expenditures. The 
$450,000 represents the total amount of LTFs available, but does not account for LTF expenditures on non-
pavement related projects (i.e. concrete improvements, pedestrian facilities, street landscaping improvements, etc.). 
It was assumed that $100,000 annually is used on these non-pavement projects. Thus, the LTFs available for 
pavement projects were determined to be $350,000 annually. 
 
In addition, the City receives Federal RSTP funds in the form of Lifeline (allocation based on population) and 
Regional Bid (competitive). Upon review of the last 6 years (due to bi-annual allocations) of RSTP funding received 
by the City, it was determined that the City receives on average approximately $250,000 in RSTP funds annually. 

59



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 12 
Pavement Management System 
  
Therefore, the combined average annual funding for pavement projects was determined to be $600,000 ($350,000 
from LTF and $250,000 from RSTP). Due to variables such as operations expenditures, gas tax revenues, and 
Federal funding levels, the average annual funding was not escalated over the analysis period to be conservative.  
 
After the existing street network characteristics (PCI, physical geometry, classification, etc.) were input into 
StreetSaver, the software was used to evaluate various scenarios for the most efficient use of funds. The first step 
was to run a Budgetary Needs Analysis for the network. This analysis develops all of the rehabilitation projects 
required to bring the network up to “optimal” condition (PCI of 85) and then the preventative maintenance projects 
required to maintain the network at that level for the analysis period, with no funding limit. StreetSaver uses a 
decision tree matrix which applies specific treatment types for specific pavement conditions and street 
classifications. The cost per square yard for each specific treatment type in the decision tree was established based 
on recent projects and current material and labor costs. An analysis period of 10 years was used for the analysis.  
 
The Budgetary Needs Analysis revealed that the City would need to spend approximately $16.6 million over the next 
10 years to achieve and maintain a PCI of 85. This equates to approximately $10.6 million over the City’s projected 
funds for the analysis period. Attachment E provides a summary of the cost per year for the Budgetary Needs 
Analysis and the treated and untreated PCI by year. The analysis also provides the optimal preventative 
maintenance percentage of the total budget, equal to roughly 18%. It is important to note that very few agencies, if 
any, are capable of developing and committing the funding necessary to meet the Budgetary Needs of their network 
 
In order to determine the most cost-effective approach for the City’s street network, based on available funding, over 
the next 10 years, staff analyzed multiple scenarios to determine the preferred alternative for the City’s PMS. There 
are two types of scenarios that can be analyzed in StreetSaver, as follows: 
 

1. Budget Scenarios: The agency defines the available annual funding (discussed above) that can be directed 
to pavement improvement projects and what percentage of the funds will be directed to preventative 
maintenance. 

2. Target Driven Scenarios: The agency defines an intended target and StreetSaver will calculate the level of 
funding necessary to achieve the defined target. Targets can include Overall PCI, maximum percentage of 
streets within specific condition category, etc. 

 
Prior to analyzing any scenarios, the projects already budgeted to be completed were input into the PMS in order to 
account for the benefit that will be realized at their completion. The City has budgeted nearly $2 million on these 
projects, over three times the average annual budget assumed for scenario analysis. This is important to note as the 
results of all of the budget scenarios show an immediate jump from the City’s current network PCI of 74 to a PCI of 
77, and then the PCI shows a slow decrease as future annual funds will not be able to match the current budgeted 
expenditures. 
 
Staff analyzed three target driven scenarios for the network. All of the scenarios were analyzed for a 10-year 
analysis period. The three scenarios and results are as follows: 
 

1. Maximum 10% of Streets in Poor Condition: Resulted in a total cost of $11.2 million (approximately $5.2 
million over projected funds), with $6.9 million in deferred maintenance. A network PCI of 76 was achieved at 
the end of the analysis period. 

2. Minimum Network PCI of 75: Resulted in a total cost of $11.1 million (approximately $5.1 million over 
projected funds), with $7.2 million in deferred maintenance. 

60



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 12 
Pavement Management System 
  

3. Minimum Network PCI of 80: Resulted in a total cost of $13.2 million (approximately $7.2 million over 
projected funds), with $4.1 million in deferred maintenance. 

 
A comparison graph showing the annual network PCI and deferred maintenance for the three target driven 
scenarios is provided as Attachment F. Deferred maintenance is the cost of preventative maintenance and 
rehabilitation work that should have been completed to maintain the streets in “optimal” condition but was deferred 
due to a lower target value, or in the case of the later discussed budget scenarios, funding restrictions. The actual 
maintenance that is being deferred is often referred to as “backlog”. A review of the results of the target driven 
scenarios reveals that although they provide staff with additional information in regards to what would be needed 
financially to meet the specific goals, the implementation of any of the scenarios is not feasible with the City’s 
financial constraints. 
 
After analyzing the results of the target driven scenarios, staff turned to the development of budget driven scenarios 
for a more “realistic” picture of how the City can best manage the street network. Staff analyzed four scenarios 
utilizing the established pavement improvement budget and varying percentage splits between preventative 
maintenance (PM) and rehabilitation. The goal with the budget scenarios is to strike a balance between the network 
PCI and deferred maintenance, while being conscious of the magnitude of the City’s available funding for pavement 
projects. The four scenarios and results are as follows: 
 

1. $600,000 (10% PM / 90% Rehabilitation): Resulted in $11.6 million in deferred maintenance and a network 
PCI of 68. 

2. $600,000 (15% PM / 85% Rehabilitation): Resulted in $11.3 million in deferred maintenance and a network 
PCI of 69. 

3. $600,000 (20% PM / 80% Rehabilitation): Resulted in $11.3 million in deferred maintenance and a network 
PCI of 70.  

4. $600,000 (30% PM / 70% Rehabilitation): Resulted in $11.6 million in deferred maintenance and a network 
PCI of 71. 
 

A comparison graph showing the annual network PCI and deferred maintenance for the four budget driven 
scenarios is included as Attachment G. Upon first glance, Scenario #4 provides the greatest impact on the City’s 
network PCI with only a slightly greater deferred maintenance versus the other scenarios. However, this scenario 
would result in an annual budget of $180,000 for preventative maintenance projects. Due to the fact that the City 
only uses LTFs for preventative maintenance projects, the City would only be left with $170,000 ($350,000 annual 
LTFs for pavement projects less the $180,000 in preventative maintenance allocation) for rehabilitation projects. 
This amount is not very economical for the completion of any substantial rehabilitation project. The limited scale of 
the City’s available annual funds limits the amount that can reasonably spent on preventative maintenance projects. 
 
Therefore, taff recommends that the City’s PMS utilize Budget Scenario #3 (20% PM / 80% Rehabilitation). This 
scenario will provides the most cost-efficient management of the City’s street network, while still considering the 
magnitude of the annual available funding. The City will still be able to complete substantial rehabilitation projects on 
streets that are in dire need of repair. The difference in the network PCI between Budget Scenario #3 and #4 is 
marginal.  
 
The next step is for Staff to begin implementing the preferred alternative in the management of the street network. 
Staff will utilize the PMS to aid in the development of CIP projects to be placed in the City’s annual budget and track 
the performance of the City’s street network. Annual spot inspections of pavement on various streets will be 
performed to ensure that the PCI calculations in StreetSaver are on par with actual conditions. Adjustments and re-
analysis of specific scenarios will be performed during the annual CIP development process to ensure that the City 

61



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 12 
Pavement Management System 
  
is using available funding in the most beneficial manner. Finally, Staff will input completed projects to keep record of 
the preventative maintenance and rehabilitation performed each year. 
 
As an alternative, Council may direct staff to analyze any additional desired scenarios, including scenarios with 
increased funding for pavement projects. Scenarios with increased funding are only viable if Council is willing to 
devote additional funds, such as CDBG funds, to be used for pavement projects. Otherwise, these scenarios would 
be primarily informational, as the actual spending recommended by StreetSaver could not be achieved.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The development of the Pavement Management System was included in the FY 2014/2015 Budget in the amount of 
$44,000. The recommended management alternative will not require an increase in the City’s annual expenditures 
for pavement projects. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Map – Completed Street Projects 
B. Map – Budgeted Reconstruction Projects 
C. Map – Current PCI Condition 
D. Current Pavement Performance Summary 
E. Budgetary Needs Cost Summary 
F. Graph – Target Driven Scenario Comparison 
G. Graph – Budget Driven Scenario Comparison 

 
 
  

62



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 12 
Pavement Management System 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 

 

63



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 12 
Pavement Management System 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

 

64



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 12 
Pavement Management System 
  

Attachment ‘C’ 

 

65



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 12 
Pavement Management System 
  

Attachment ‘D’ 

 

66



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 12 
Pavement Management System 
  

Attachment ‘E’ 

 

67



City Council Staff Report   Page 11 of 12 
Pavement Management System 
  

Attachment ‘F’ 

 

68



City Council Staff Report   Page 12 of 12 
Pavement Management System 
  

Attachment ‘G’ 

 

69



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: CITY MANAGER 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: APRIL 15, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, City Manager/Director of Planning 
Subject: First Reading and Introduction of Ordinance No. 15-01 Amending Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal 

Code Related to Emergency Shelters, Transitional and Supportive Housing for the Homeless 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council introduce, waive further reading, and set a public hearing for May 6, 2015 for adoption of an Ordinance No. 
15-01 amending Chapter 17.90.020 and adding Section 17.92 to Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code relating 
to emergency shelters, transitional and supportive housing for the homeless. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
On January 26, 2015, the Director of Planning and Development Services introduced a proposed zoning ordinance 
amendment related to emergency shelters, transitional and supportive housing for the homeless. The proposed 
zoning ordinance amendment is based on the provisions of Senate Bill 2 (SB2), which requires local agencies to 
identify one or more zones where emergency shelters are allowed as a permitted use without a conditional use 
permit, provided that the zone(s) include sufficient number of sites to accommodate the number of homeless 
individuals in the community. Compliance with SB2 is required as part of the upcoming 5th Cycle Housing Element 
update. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
 
On March 23, 2015, the Kerman Planning Commission conducted a public hearing and adopted Resolution No. 15-
01 recommending that the City Council approve Zoning Ordinance Amendment No. 15-01 relating to emergency 
shelters, transitional and supportive housing for the homeless consistent with the requirements of SB2. 

OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The City of Kerman’s Zoning Ordinance must be in compliance with provisions of SB2 related to emergency, 
transitional and supportive housing in order for the Department of Housing and Community Development to certify 
the City’s 5th Cycle Housing Element update. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Kerman has joined the County of Fresno and ten other cities for the preparation of a Multi-Jurisdictional 
Housing Element Update (MJHE). Mintier-Harnish is the planning consultant selected to prepare the update. The 
fifth cycle Housing Element must be submitted to the State Department of Housing and Community Development 
(HCD) by December 31, 2015. 

70



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  
As part of the Housing Element update, Mintier-Harnish conducted a review of the City’s zoning ordinance and 
determined that Kerman’s ordinance does not include provisions for emergency shelters, transitional and supportive 
housing for the homeless as required by Senate Bill 2 (SB2). 

 
SB2 was adopted by the California State Legislature and became law in 2008. This Bill requires cities and counties 
to identify one or more zones in the City where emergency shelters would be allowed as a permitted use without a 
conditional use permit. The zoning that is identified by the City must be of a sufficient amount of acreage and sites to 
accommodate the unmet needs of local homeless persons. In establishing zones, the statute gave local jurisdictions 
the ability to establish certain operational and development standards for emergency shelters. In addition, SB2 
requires that transitional housing and supportive housing be considered a residential use in the City codes, and 
subject only to those restrictions that apply to other residential dwellings in the same zone. 

 
To comply with SB2 and address homeless needs in Kerman, this zoning ordinance amendment proposes to add 
definitions for emergency shelters, transitional and supportive housing to serve the homeless, and identifies 
emergency shelters as permitted uses in the Service Commercial (C-S) or Light Industrial Zone (M-1) Zone Districts, 
subject to specific standards. Factors such as estimated homeless, the availability of land and suitable facilities 
pointed to service commercial and light industrially-zoned properties as the most suitable areas to allow for siting of 
emergency shelters. 

 
Transitional housing assists persons or families with multiple barriers to housing, such as mental or physical health 
needs, chronic substance abuse, or difficulty budgeting housing/living costs. As defined by HUD, the primary 
purpose of ‘temporary housing’ is to facilitate the movement of individuals or families experiencing homelessness to 
permanent housing within 24 months. Persons residing in transitional housing programs receive specialized 
supportive services (i.e. child care, employment assistance, health services, case management etc.) that will help 
them resolve their housing issues and live more independently. 

 
Permanent supportive housing targets homeless persons with disabling conditions. Permanent supportive housing 
has no limit on the duration of stay and integrates wrap-around services. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City of Kerman must demonstrate compliance with State housing law as outlined in SB2 before HCD can certify 
the fifth cycle Housing Element Update. The proposed amendment to the zoning code will bring the City into 
compliance with SB2 requirements by identifying one or more zones that allow emergency shelters as a permitted 
use by right. The zoning that is identified must include a sufficient amount of acreage and sites to accommodate the 
unmet need for the shelter of homeless people in the City of Kerman. 
 
One key source of information for Fresno County’s homeless population is the biennial Fresno-Madera Continuum 
of Care Point-in-Time Count. Every other January, communities across the United States conduct comprehensive 
counts of their homeless population. The Counties of Fresno and Madera conducted its most recent homeless 
census in January 2014. The 2014 Point-in-Time Count estimated that there were 2,597 homeless individuals in 
Fresno/Madera Counties, with 8 homeless persons estimated to be from the City of Kerman. (As of the writing of this 
report, the January 2015 Point-in-Time Count Survey was in progress and not yet completed). 
 
Due to the estimated low number of homeless individuals in Kerman, there are currently no emergency shelters, 
transitional or supportive housing facilities located in the City. Homeless individuals would find temporary refuge 
(usually overnight) in local churches or would be referred to such housing facilities in the City of Fresno. There are 
several emergency shelters in Fresno that serve surrounding cities. These include: Poverello House and Fresno 
Rescue Mission. 

71



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  
Given the low number of homeless individuals in Kerman, the area proposed to allow for emergency shelters is the 
Service Commercial (C-S) and Light Industrial (M-1) Zone District. With approximately 100 acres of land designated 
for C-S and M-1, there is more than sufficient land to meet the requirements of SB2 to accommodate the siting of an 
emergency shelter. Moreover, these sites are within close proximity to major services situated along Whitesbridge 
Road and Madera Avenue. The zoning map in Attachment ‘A’ identifies those areas zoned Service Commercial and 
Light Industrial. 
 
The proposed zoning ordinance amendment identifies emergency shelters as a permitted use by right in the Service 
Commercial (C-S) and Light Industrial Zone District (M-1), provided certain standards are met. These include: 
maximum occupancy, length of stay, hours of operation, and parking. One key requirement is a Management and 
Operation Plan. The plan must provide a detailed security plan, operating procedures, staff ratio to clients served, 
“good neighbor” communication plan, client transportation plan, and a program for ongoing outreach to the Kerman 
homeless population. The Management and Operation Plan is to be reviewed and approved by the Director of 
Planning & Development in conjunction with the Police Chief prior to issuance of permit to minimize any impacts on 
surrounding land uses. 
 
As defined in the ordinance, an Emergency Shelters for homeless in Kerman would allow up to 30 beds or persons 
per night and would be permitted by right. By definition, an emergency shelter is any facility with dedicated 
beds/units whose primary intent is to provide overnight sleeping accommodations to those confronted with an 
immediate loss of housing or those who are already homeless. These shelters serve as the point of entry into the 
homeless assistance program and provide temporary shelter with a general length of stay ranging from 8 hours 
(overnight sleeping only) to 180 days, depending on provider. 
 
In summary, the provisions of SB 2 do not mandate that the City provide emergency shelters, transitional or 
supportive housing for the homeless. However, the law requires the City to allow for such facilities to be located 
within designated zone districts as a permitted use by right. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
There is no fiscal impact associated with this action. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
A public hearing notice on the proposed ordinance amendment will be published in the Kerman News for the May 6, 
2015 City Council meeting. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Emergency Shelter Zone Map 
B. Ordinance No. 15-01 Amending Chapter 17 of the KMO 
C. SB2 Fact Sheet 

  

72



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

Emergency Shelter Zone Map 
 

 
  

73



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-01 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN AMENDING TITLE 17 OF THE KERMAN 
MUNICIPAL CODE TO PROVIDE FOR EMERGENCY SHELTER, TRANSITIONAL AND SUPPORTIVE HOUSING 

FOR THE HOMELESS IN COMPLIANCE WITH STATE HOUSING LAW (SB2) 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Kerman hereby finds, determines and declares as follows: 
 
A. That the City of Kerman seeks to be in compliance with the State of California’s regulations for the 

allowance of emergency homeless shelters as required by State Senate Bill 2 (SB2). 

B. That the State of California Legislature passed SB2 (effective January 1, 2008) modifying State Housing 
Element law to require local planning and zoning regulations to facilitate homeless shelters. Specifically, 
SB2 requires all cities and counties to provide at least one zoning category in which emergency shelters 
can be located without discretionary approval from the local government. The zoning category must be 
identified in the locality’s housing element, and include sites with sufficient capacity to meet the local 
need for emergency shelter. 

C. That after a thorough review the following standards have been developed in order to allow emergency 
homeless shelters as required, while maintaining those regulations necessary to provide for public 
health, safety and welfare. 

D. The staff report recommending City Council adoption for this ordinance dated March 23, 2015 shall by 
this reference be incorporated herein, and together with this ordinance, any amendments or supplements 
and the oral testimony before the City Council at this meeting, shall additionally constitute the necessary 
findings for this ordinance. 

Section 2. Pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) and the State CEQA Guidelines, 
the adoption of this ordinance is exempt from CEQA review pursuant to 14 California Code of Regulations section 15-
61(b)(3), and a Notice of Exemption will be filed with the County Recorder upon adoption of this ordinance. 

Section 3. Section 17.90.020 Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code is hereby amended to add or amend 
the following definitions: 

 "Emergency residential shelter" shall be amended to read as follows: 
 
“Emergency residential shelter” means housing with minimal supportive services for homeless persons that 
is limited to occupancy of six months or less by a homeless person, where no individual or household may be 
denied emergency shelter because of an inability to pay; as defined and used in Section 508019 of the 
California Health and Safety Code. 

“Transitional housing” shall be added to read as follows: 

74



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

“Transitional housing” Buildings configured as rental housing developments, but operated under program 
requirements that require the termination of assistance and recirculating of the assisted unit to another 
eligible program recipient at a predetermined future point in time that shall be no less than six months from 
the beginning of the assistance. Transitional housing units are residential uses allowed in all zones that allow 
residential uses, subject only to those requirements and restrictions that apply to other residential uses of the 
same type in the same zone.  

“Supportive housing” shall be added to read as follows: 

“Supportive housing” housing with no limit on length of stay, that is occupied by the target population and that 
is linked to onsite or offsite services that assist the supportive housing resident in retaining the housing, 
improving his or her health status, and maximizing his or her ability to live and, when possible, work in the 
community. Supportive housing units are residential uses allowed in all zones that allow residential uses, 
subject only to those requirements and restrictions that apply to other residential uses of the same type in the 
same zone.  

“Target populations” shall be added to read as follows: 

“Target populations” persons with low incomes who have one or more disabilities, including mental illness, 
HIV or AIDS, substance abuse, or other chronic health condition, or individuals eligible for services provided 
pursuant to the Lanterman Developmental Disabilities Services Act (Division 4.5 (commencing with Section 
4500) of the Welfare and Institutions Code) and may include, among other populations, adults, emancipated 
minors, families with children, elderly persons, young adults aging out of the foster care system, individuals 
exiting from institutional settings, veterans, and homeless people.  

Each of the foregoing definitions or amended definitions shall be inserted within the existing text of Section 
17.90.020 according to the alphabetical order currently observed therein. 

Section 4.  Chapter 17.92 of the Kerman Municipal Code is hereby added to read as follows: 

Chapter 17.92. Homeless Shelters 

Section 17.92.010. Homeless Shelter – Zones 

An emergency shelter for homeless or multiservice center for homeless shall be a permitted use on 
any parcel within the C-S (Service Commercial) or M-1 (Light Industrial) zones. Each facility shall comply 
with all of the required development and operational standards of the zone in which it is located. 

 Section 17.92.020. Standards 

In addition to the development standards in the underlying zoning district, the following standards 
apply to emergency shelters and each emergency shelter shall comply with the standards set forth in this 
Section. In the event of conflict between these standards and the underlying zoning district regulations, the 
provisions of this Section shall apply. Nothing in this Section modifies the requirements for approval of a 
religious facility as otherwise provided in this Code. 

(1) Facility Compliance. Federal, State and local licensing as required for any program 
incidental to the emergency shelter. 

(2) Physical Characteristics. 

75



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

a. Compliance with applicable state and local uniform housing and building code 
requirements. 

b. The facility shall have on-site security during all hours when the shelter is open. 

c. Facilities shall provide exterior lighting on pedestrian pathways and parking lot areas 
on the property. Lighting shall reflect away from residential areas and public streets. 

d. Facilities shall provide secure areas for personal property. 

(3) Occupancy. A maximum of 30 beds or persons may be served nightly, with associated 
support service not open to the public. 

(4) Length of stay. The length of stay of an individual client shall not exceed six (6) months 
within a twelve (12) month period; days of stay need not be consecutive. 

(5) Parking. On-site vehicle parking spaces shall be provided at a rate of 2 spaces per facility for 
staff plus 1 space per six (6) occupants or beds allowed at the maximum occupancy. A 
covered and secured area for bicycle parking shall be provided for use by staff and clients, 
commensurate with demonstrated need, but no less than a minimum of eight (8) bike 
parking spaces. 

(6) Waiting and Intake Area. A client waiting area shall be provided sufficient in size to 
accommodate all persons waiting to enter the facility, and shall contain a minimum of ten 
(10) square feet per bed provided at the facility. 

(7) Support Services. Emergency shelters that provide support services shall allocate sufficient 
areas on-site, and properly enclosed within the building. Support services include, but are 
limited to, the following: 

a. Food preparation and dining areas. 
b. Laundry facilities. 
c. Restrooms and showers. 
d. Areas to secure and store client belongings. 

(8) Management and Operating Plan. The applicant or operator shall submit a Management and 
Operation Plan for the Emergency Shelter for review and approval by the Planning Director 
in consultation with the Chief of Police in conjunction with the Site Plan Review application 
and/or prior to the issuance of permits. The plan shall include a floor plan that demonstrates 
compliance with the physical standards of this chapter. The plan shall remain active 
throughout the life of the facility, with any changes subject to review and approval by the 
Planning Director in consultation with the Chief of Police. The plan shall be based on “best 
practices” and include, but limited to, a security plan, procedures list, list of services, staff 
training, “good neighbor” communication plan, client transport and active transportation plan, 
ratio of staff to clients, eligibility and intake and check out process, detailed hours of 
operation, ongoing outreach plan to Kerman homeless population, and participation in data 
collection for the Fresno Madera Counties Continuum of Care Point-in-Time Report. The 
City may inspect the facility at any time for compliance with the facility’s Management and 
Operation Plan and other applicable laws and standards. 

76



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

(9) Permit Fee. The city council may establish a fee by resolution, to cover the administrative 
cost of review of the required Management and Operation Plan. 

Section 17.92.030 Transitional and Supportive Housing – Zones. 

Transitional housing and supportive housing shall be considered a residential use of property in the multi-
family zone district, and shall be subject only to those restrictions that apply to other residential dwellings of the same 
type in the same zone.  

Section 17.92.040  Constitutionality.  Should any section, subsection, paragraph, clause, or phrase of this 
Chapter for any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect 
the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Chapter. 

Section 5. Upon passage of this ordinance or a summary of the same shall be published within fifteen (15) 
days of passage pursuant to the laws of the State of California in the Kerman News, a newspaper of general 
circulation published and circulated in said City of Kerman. 

The foregoing ordinance was introduced and given its first reading at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Kerman held on the 15th day of April, 2015, and was passed after a second reading and noticed public hearing 
held pursuant to law at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman on the 6th day of May, 2015 by the 
following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN:           
      ______________________________ 

 Stephen Hill 
 Mayor 
  

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 

 
 
  

77



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

Attachment ‘C’ 
 

Senate Bill 2 Fact Sheet 
 

Summary: SB 2 strengthens state law by ensuring that every jurisdiction identifies potential sites where new 
emergency shelters can be located without discretionary review by the local government. It also increases protections 
for providers seeking to open a new emergency shelter, transitional housing or supportive housing development, by 
limiting the instances in which local governments can deny such developments. Applicable to all cities and counties in 
California, SB 2 takes effect January 1, 2008, and will impact all housing element updates due after this date, as well 
as those that were due prior to 2008, but are being submitted for the first time after January 1, 2008. Subject to 
important limitations described below, SB 2: 
 

• Requires all cities and counties (“localities”) to provide at least one zoning category in which emergency 
shelters can be located without discretionary approval from the local government. The zoning category must 
be identified in the locality’s housing element, and include sites with sufficient capacity to meet the local need 
for emergency shelter. 

• Requires that all localities provide at least one such site. 
• Expands the Housing Accountability Act, to prohibit localities from denying a proposal to build an emergency 

shelter, transitional housing or supportive housing if it is needed and otherwise consistent with the locality’s 
zoning and development standards. 

 
Key Elements: The changes created by SB 2 should be thought of in two categories: (1) Planning for emergency 
shelters; and (2) siting of emergency shelters, transitional housing and supportive housing. 
 
Planning for Emergency Shelters 
Each locality must identify in its housing element at least one zoning category in which homeless shelters are 
allowed, without a conditional use permit or other discretionary review. More particularly, the locality must: 
 

• Identify Need: Under current law, the housing element must include an estimate of the number of persons in 
need of emergency shelter in the jurisdiction. SB 2 requires the analysis to consider both seasonal and 
annual need. 
 

• Provide sites for new emergency shelters: SB 2 requires the local government to show in its housing 
element that it has one or more zoning categories that allow emergency shelters without a conditional use 
permit or other discretionary review. The local government cannot use discretionary criteria to deny the 
project; if it meets certain objective criteria, the shelter must be approved. 

The identified zone or zones must have sufficient capacity to meet all of the locality’s identified need 
for emergency shelter. For example, if a locality determines that it has an unmet need of 100 persons who 
are homeless, the zone or zones identified must consist of sites that have sufficient capacity to 
accommodate a shelter or shelters for 100 people. Regardless of the identified need, each jurisdiction must 
identify at least one such site. 

 
• Rezone If Necessary: If the locality does not currently have such a zone or the zone is not sufficient, it must 

include a program to amend its zoning ordinance to provide a sufficient zone or zones within one year of the 
adoption of its housing element. 
 

78



City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 10 
First Reading and Introduction – Ordinance Amending Chapter 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code  
  

• Eliminate Onerous Standards: The local government can establish objective development and 
management standards for the operation of emergency shelters, such as the size, parking standards, 
lighting, and others set forth in the law. However, the locality must demonstrate that any management or 
development standards as well as any permit processing standards that it applies are objective and actually 
encourage the creation of emergency shelters. 
 

• Exceptions for Compliant Cities: If the local government can demonstrate that it has an emergency shelter 
or shelters that meet all of its existing need, it must still designate a zone or zones where emergency shelters 
are permitted, but it may require a conditional or discretionary use permit. In addition, any city with an 
existing by-right process for emergency shelters that is in compliance with the standards set forth in SB 2 
need only describe its ordinance and how it meets the requirements of the law. 

Finally, the bill gives credit to jurisdictions that are successfully implementing a supportive housing 
program model under the jurisdiction’s 10-year plan to End Chronic Homelessness, by allowing a reduction 
in the need to account for supportive housing units available in the community. To take advantage of this 
credit, the jurisdiction must show that the units are (1) identified in the plan; and (2) either currently vacant or 
have all of the necessary funding to allow construction during the planning period. 

 
• Multi-Jurisdictional Agreements: Localities may meet some of their need by entering into an agreement 

with up to two other adjacent local governments to provide a joint facility provided the emergency shelter will 
be developed within two years of the beginning of the planning period. For example, two adjoining cities and 
a county may agree to jointly fund an emergency shelter, and count that shelter toward their identified need. 
The participating jurisdictions must adopt an agreement which, among other things, allocates a portion of the 
new shelter capacity to each jurisdiction. 
 

• Transitional and Supportive Housing: The bill clarifies that the local government must analyze any 
constraints to the development of supportive housing, transitional housing or emergency shelters. It also 
provides that transitional housing and supportive housing must be treated the same as any other residential 
use within the same zone. For example, when supportive housing is allowed in a multifamily residential zone, 
the local government cannot impose any additional restrictions on supportive housing than what are imposed 
on other multifamily units. 
 

Siting of Emergency Shelters, Transitional and Supportive Housing 
 

The bill also ensures that local governments do not unreasonably deny approval for needed emergency 
shelters, transitional housing or supportive housing. The California Housing Accountability Act (formerly referred to as 
the Anti-NIMBY statute) prohibits discrimination against certain types of permanent housing for lower-income 
households. SB 2 expands this law to cover emergency shelters, and clarifies that it protects transitional and 
supportive housing, as well. 

As a result, except under very limited exceptions, if a new emergency shelter is proposed on a site that is 
zoned to allow that use, and the local government has not met the need for emergency shelter identified in its 
housing element, the local government must approve the shelter. Similarly, transitional or supportive housing projects 
that are consistent with the zoning for the proposed site may not be denied if the city has not yet met its need for new 
housing units affordable to the income levels to be served by the proposed project, except under limited 
circumstances. 

79



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Stephen B. Hill Gary Yep  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Rhonda Armstrong Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: APRIL 15, 2015 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Ken Moore, Public Works Director 
Subject: Kerman Potable Water System Overview 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Informational only. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The State of California is in a 4th year of a drought. The Governor issued a state of emergency in 2014 and on April 
1, 2015 signed an executive order mandating water conservation measures to reduce water usage by 25%. In 
addition, there have been several new regulations and laws regarding water quality requirements and long-term 
water management plans. In response to all of these changes, staff determined that it would be a good idea to 
provide the Council with an overview of the City’s water system and discuss some of the new laws and how they 
might impact Kerman. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES 
 
Include; meeting the water demand of our City, now and in the future; the State requirements for water conservation; 
the new water quality requirements; what we have done and what we intend to do to meet the State Emergency 
Water Conservation Measures.   
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City of Kerman water system has a total of six wells, 57 miles of distribution lines and storage of 1.5 million 
gallons. The stored water is pumped into the system daily during the peak demand time of the day and is refilled at 
night in readiness for the next day. The operation of the system is controlled by a SCADA (Supervisory Control and 
Data Acquisition) system with two access control locations, one at the wastewater treatment plant and one in the 
Public Works office on California Avenue. The water system produced 1,054 million gallons in 2014. This is a 
reduction of 17.2 % from 2008. The system operating pressure is set to operate between 42 and 55 PSI. 
 
Although the water demand rises considerably during the warmer months of the year, it should be noted that the 
domestic use of water reflected by the daily flow to the Wastewater Treatment Plant remains fairly constant 
demonstrating that landscape irrigation and other outdoor uses are the main cause of the increase. The operational 
and maintenance budget for the water system in 2014/15 is $924,640.  
 
The City of Kerman passed water savings requirements several years ago that limited landscape irrigation to three 
days per week making Kerman one of the first cities in the area to do so. 

80



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 2 
Kerman Potable Water System Overview 
  

 
City of Kerman operates its own public water distribution system. City Public Works Director and the City Engineer 
will present a potable water system overview to the City Council that includes water use, future well needs, ground 
water levels, water quality requirements and information, water conservation regulations and water conservation 
measures along with a plan to utilize non-potable water, reclaimed water use and a description of how we intend to 
develop a sustainable groundwater management plan. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
None. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None. 
 

81


	Agenda
	The S.E.A.R.C.H 2015
	S.E.A.R.C.H. Flyer

	Minutes
	April 1, 2015

	Payroll
	Payroll

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Monthly Investment Report Ending March 31, 2015
	Investment Report

	Initiation of Proceedings for the Annual Levy of Assessments for Landscape and Lighting District No. 1
	Staff Report - LMD Initiation

	Resolution Awarding Contract to Merzon Consulting to Facilitate City Council Goal Setting Workshop
	Staff Report - Merzon Consulting

	Kerman Police Department 2014 Annual Report
	KPD - 2014 Annual Report

	Presentation of Pavement Management System
	Staff Report - Pavement Management Systems

	First Reading and Introduction of Ordinance No. 15-01 Amending Title 17 of the Kerman Municipal Code Related to Emergency Shelters, Transitional and Supportive Housing for the Homeless

	Staff Report - Emergency Shelter Ordinance

	Kerman Potable Water System Overview
	Staff Report - Kerman Water System Overview 


